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Group snapshot

Revenue
Revenue has increased by

over 82% in the last 3 years

from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce encugh
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
pecple

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carben tonnes this year

Number of loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
N the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
enerqgy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review

Our Greup was in a solid position coming out of

the lockdown response o Covid-19, and our
business has continued 1o verform robustly
throughout the year. Triz year 1as seen some
of certain

unforecasted growth in valde divisions

primariy driver by trie ingrease in ereargy prices.

Fern Tracding Limited ("tne Company” or tegether
wth its subsidianes the Group”) targets consistent
growth for srareniciders over the long term, with a
focus on steady and predictable growth, this
partcuarty imporiant during more Cha»-ﬂmcmg
economic condiions We diversted ang

mature business naftung a Groun with more thar

have 3

12 years of trading ~istory and ambiionr The Groun

300 comparies tnat have

COMDrsas maore thar

operated it a range of seclors over many years
generating steady lonq—:elr‘.’w growth for our

snarenolders ‘We onerate In essentizl secters that
we expect 1o perform steacily through marke:

volatiaty.

From this secure bas2 we have been able te agd

ncrerental expansion and divers

Tieasured way through seekimg ol cpportuaities in

eSe tectons provide us

izcent sectors,

w'tn a platform to continue Lo expand in line witn

our existing strategy Today, our Group Comgpenses
energy, oroperty lencing, healthcare nfrastructure,
fibre and house bulding dvisions We have grownr
to be a signifcant prese-ce witair our rost
estaklis 5 of the UK'S
solar energy ore w nd

hed sectors, preaucing 4.2
and 1.7% of the UK's onsho
buidi~g a £E361m short anc

litates the

energy output, and
medivm term lending pusness that fac
corstruction ard mprovemnent of homes
througnout the UK

The Company's share price delivered 10% growth

over the past 12 miorths, v rget
of 4% growtr per anrum, The extras-d rary growth

vell ahead of our ta

s atributatle to cur energy division, which ~as
penefitted from a significant Increase in long-term
asts and energy ‘orward rates

over the percd, ir addingn to nflanon. The

anerqgy prce forec

nNcreasa n tre vawe of cur energy division was
supported oy sola operat’onal performance acros

L]
all sec

v

ors and some organic growih in newer

SECIOrs,
We remain a supportive ermioloysr, with more than
1695
own andg operate, ana ndirect employment

O full-time sta’f across tre businesses that we
prov%ded for hurcreds more peop.s through
ontracts trat we have 1In olage.

A reflection on our year

Qur business rased £404m from investors this year,
delivered consisent reveriues whee
deployrre
generated a

growing caoital
nt, resutlng i £/12r0 in revenue

across e Group 2020 F4257; 2na ret
2197 20250 £18883m restated)

asgels o £.2

The fnanoz! staterments for the year show 2

cperating profit before tax ¢ £45m agamst our

expected cutcome of 3 amal sccouniing proftit "his

robast perionmance is a d rect result of engrgy
oS

ed by the group e ng sokd for nigher prices

dunng the year Amost 60% of our pusiness

cormpnses renawasle erergy generai g assets such

as solar erergy sites ard wnd farms, when proy de

WNg-tenmn reverue stregms, " hase are intentionaily

diversified across a range of lechnoleg.es ta mitigate
Aganst pocr periormance in & spe SioF ana
cornbiate towarrds ”E'idy ored mce

growth, ro
by changes in prong and de
corzecutive ang mratenal increases in ong term

energy prce forecasts and energy forward rates

g‘obalxy over the last 15 months as the globai
econoimy recovers frorm the Covid-19 pardemic,
ard seeks alternative sources of energy as a resuit of
the conf ¢t in Lkraire Along wthinfatior, these
factors bave matedally ircressed the value of the
Groudp's energy assers,

esn bo swEreg this
year w i the
jurisdictions, as well as

the UL commercial and industrial roo;fop clar

ementary

ertise (o erter

‘C
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Chief Executive’s review

markets and starting construchon on a arge wnd
farm in Australia. At the start of the year we added
rine add.tonal sites 1o our reserve power division
which brings s Jg to 26
ter stes for most of 2021} These stes have

sies 0 total [comosred (o
performed anead of expectations, genersting
EBIMDA of £20m {2021 Elmy auring tne year

Our successiul and well- ':star;:.n_:hed h o Ass
and nas
detivered stabie

refturns s:nce acqu:sitior\. n 2015

“have been partcularly pleased 1o e

D

TNis year,
- ce atl odr nowest Biomass sie i

sirong performan
Srette

rion, Tast Anglia, which was acguired in Apri
2021 p fowmg o ke a valuame addition to the
business Dunrg the year we purcnasad a Waste-
W-Energy faciity currently under constructorin
Ayrshire. Tne faciity hias been in deveiopment for
trree years and wil be capstie of grocessing ovear
125,600 tonnes par annum o non-recyclable
housshold, commiercia. and ndusmal waste wh o
would otherwise e sert 1o [anaril or exported

s will generare 17 MWe of low carpon glectncty,
encugh to power 30,000 nomes 1t will be the first
large-scaie, sunsidy free waste-to-energy projectin
westerr Scotland ard projectec completon gatwe s

in early 2024,

Owver recent years, many of
bean under construction whic~ has cortitued to

our energy assets nave

our greviousy reported accounting losses. This g
of such businesses durng growth pras
bhecauze inance costs

e

typical
aver when cash ganerative,

’1

and accounting charges, such as depreciation
exceedes revenues, This division nas now reaced

our target size and sector <plit.

Accordingly this yvear : am pieased o repart an

accodnting profit before tax of E48m aganst our
budgeted small accounting grofit Thes sl gntiy
larger than expected profit is dus to the maturity of
ulting n
incregsed revenue from our energy division as well
as an increase ininflatior fas expiained below).

the portfolio and higher energy prices, res

Cur property \end'ng businass rrakes Lp arc.and
27% of the Group ang comprizes short ard med um
term securas lcans o expenenced property
professiorals. Ths estabisked part of our pusiness
~onticued to perform well, foliowing a s—ort penod
of siow dowr aurng Covid-19 whern we
intentionally c-ose to write fewer loans. Cur average

lzan book was 1852 icans th s year Lo JR bor

corservative oan o value lavels betow 70%), n

rihat T maintaing access o valdable securnty of

reduction n property values Tnis strategy

ed the Groun well since inceptic™ 12 years
o, and [ has operated through parods of change

“es T he Groug s ta<ing a naturally
55irg rew endng

il
]
0
=

utlook To date, the Group has £2 2br of
prcgert/ loans since inceplion ir 2070, suffering

s trie rezult of our careful approach in this sector,
ed due dilgence, conser
loan-to-value ratics and an abiuy and willingness o
ect

or durimg tmes of

comprising disciphe vat've
reduce actvity it thiz s
economic uncertamty We wll centnae to adopt
tris approacs throughout the cormirg year,

The heathcare division maxes up arcund 4% of the
Group and is proadly performing wel., Our
retirernent villages business, Range‘ord Holdings
Lirtited ("Rangefard”) continued o sell apartments
at three sites, commenced corstrucion of & fourth
vilage ir Chertsey, and acquired a Hfth location
rear Carrbridge during the year Sales at the
Chrertsey site are expected 10 commence i 2524,
while constructionr at the Cambricge site

expectad to start in 2023 with the first sales
commencing i1 2076,

Cur fibre division was esiablished in 2019 and
remains an area of growih for the Group, nowy
comprising of six operating busnesses, Our

residential businessas, Jurass c Fmre, Swisn Fibre,




Chief Executive's review

Ciganet and Adponts Fibre are uﬁdmg abirafast

“fibre to the premises” broadbard nebworks

in

regions of the UK which nave beer overlocked by
iarger orerators. G'ganet croviges connect vty to
nomes and busnesses across the UK wang Ciyhibre
ard Ooenreacn irfrastructdre and Vitnfhis a software
development company wiich has deveoped
proprietary software 1o aliow Internet Serv ce
Providers to seli connectivity over whiolesale anglbied

retworks, inciud.ng Allpairs ~iore Vorboss sthe
UK's only dedicated enterprise fibre network 1o focus

=5 i _onden

or providing connectivity 1o busires

denual hbre busine
f=ln XA gTsl] ra har

In the year, our re

contrnued 7o Invest caoit
networks ic the Rormre Countes, the South andg
Southwest of tngiand, ara are now orboarcimyg

custorners to thair networks, gencrating recarmaig

L()

revenues for the Groop, Our st
retwaorks are able 1o meet customor demand for

clgher broadoand speeds required as a result of

more ’J\*’(JTF’WQ-HO!T'T-('!O"TT% G ImCreased uLade of

D

video-an-demaria sery cec In ' ondor, Yorboss has
alss contrued (o build arnd has nstalled over

EC'CkrYw f fib e with a cormrntent 1o offer 10
fiore o up to 15 000 husiresses in Ce~ral Landon

oy 2027

Wiilst our fibre division remains in a growth ohase
for the rext 3-5 years we do not expect it to renart

an accournt rg profit

Towards tre end cf tne year, we added a new
property developer to the Grour}, witn the acquisinien
clivia Hemes CEswvia’) for 285m. Eliva is an

eztatlisned house puilder deve‘aoiﬂg m\'(;—market

farn by nomes i London comimuter towns a0

vitages While rmis 'Dprr\sert\, @ wvory erall pan of the
Croup, we ola grow DN g meazured way over
the next five years wwti’: an ultirmate target to delver

600 homes per year, nicluding 200 high cualty

affordable homes Elivia has a strorg exsing

gadersnug ieam who are key to running the businéess

Inflation and Interest rates
The higher rate 0F Inflation experiences this year
nas beer resporsfme for some of the
oatoerformance aganst expectations in the
Company's share price HM Treasury forecast that
Figh .nflat on s lixely (o be present unti, 2025, as a

TETUIT We expect IO reCRive maore revenue for the

enargy gererated within our energy division, ard a
righer vawe from the govertment subsidies that
sormie of our erergy sites benefit from, mereasirg
the value of those sites. However, a short pericd of
righ nflat on such as forecas

onthe rate at we'ch the G-

t haz very uttie effect

e renewiasle ernerdy SITeS W v

=g future

derive thervalug frem discoorted

Nflows over the e they are
operac for, tymicaly 20 years orm
outook for long-term inflaton were 1o increate, the
rmpact on our share onge shoud be positive

DECause it wouls ndrease tho revenue eac of our

sites would expect o make, it cotrast to a

Iy “ixed cost base

The exgected rse rontersst rates is forocast o

return to normal afier a grificant penod of very

i
The rmmediate imzac: of this on our

tusness is expectec o be broadly newtral since

O rates,

our Croup s mten:sona;ty structured so a5 "ot to

experierce sighificant value 1o when intarest

rates crangs We continue o take a cautious
approach witnin our lending business where the
N8'ng interest rates are felt more Cdosely, and we
Fave the abil oy to reduce the number of oans
we write, or alter the risk profle o our Ioans
througa reduaing loan o valie ralios or pausmg
activity in certair parts of the mar<et should that
feel appronrate
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Chief Executive’s review

Current trading and outlook
Since the year end, the Grouo has continued to
perfora steachy from an coerat'oral perspective
ard in line with our expeciations albeit we have
seen share price growth ahead of target due to the
cortinued increase In lorg ©erm energy nrice
forecasts, Our growth targets for the Group over
e mecidr sna long ter reran urchanged, and
we Conbnue 1o foCus on rraintaning a diversified
tusiress that s capable of delivering mare

crediciable growtr: for sha

‘erolders.

Tne recently anncunced Elacincity Generaor Levy

EGL witrir the 2022 F nance Bill, wi. have an

Impact en the returns generated from our energy
next 5years This s further

ssed intne group

portfol o ovar the

¥
CISE

-

nance review on page 27

Cur property lendirg pus.ness cortinues 1o
perform S’F’“"lgj with increased cec
sectorsrce tn

oyment Nt
year ena We fccus or short term
loans (our average current [oan term s 17 months)
which énabies LS 10 acapl (o cranges in oulosk
swiftly, we fesl this s particularly important in the

currert econcmic cimate

Performarce in our healthcare divsicn continues
to be stable, and we cortinue 10 remain positive
Dout the opportanites to imorove perforrmance 'n

QJ

h s sector

—

ince vear end, we have continued ¢ build out our

bre networks, with construction tra

T L1

ingin line

Wit our expecratbr‘g We coninue o
apportunines for both argaric and inorgarnc

review

growtn supgort:ng our exizting managament teams
in deiivering tris strategy

In Decemter 2022 we have acguired the rnignts t
£25r of nght 1o use mobtile licerses rom Three

J¥, thus ma<irg the first step towaras becorring an
g g

-

OUODRS INUA NeIW SR CREraior

53]
&

Our mix of busines<s areas has deve oped over time

and may evolve further over the years ahead, dr ven
Ly the cyerarchirg impgoriance we place on
mieeting tne objectives of our sharehalders Thrs
stoud rot be reac as any incicahon of a wnolesale

Criange N the seciors ir whoh we operate, DUt a5 3

Q)
o

reflecuar of tne rale payed oy the strategic

mandate in protecting snasehclders interests

“Our mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

What we do

Fera

Trading Lrrited ("Fern') s the parent company
o nearty 320 silsid anes iogether the "Group”). Our
Group operates 3cross five key areas enargy,
healthcare lencing, fore and house builaing Cver
thie past rwealve years we nave Duilt a carefully
drversified group of cperating businesses that are
well postin-ed to delver long-term value and

oredictable growth for our shareholders

1. Energy division
We generate power rom sustamable sources and

se:l the erergy p-’oduced either directly to inaustnal
Consumers ar i large

networks, Many of cur

renewable 2rergy sites quatfy for aovernrment

ncentives, which reprasent ar additicona source of
ncorne, We have also ulised Cur expertise ir
renewalyle eqsrgy to construct fac lities for sale or
ongoing operation. At year end the Growp Fad

21 sites urder corstruction

2. Healthcare division

We provide homes and leisure facstes to our

ageing populsuon, and privale hos
provide figh

pitals wrech
quality healthcare services across

n the UK

coeraticnal sites

Solar, wind,

3. Lending division
We tend or
Dasis to a

short and medium term, secured
Arge numizer of property professionas.
Ve also provide financirg 1o enable other Cusiness

1C puitd assets and otrar residential ard
commercial proparties.

4. Fibre division
We own and o_cerate fiore broadband networ<s
= UK. We build the

them to hornes and

across vanous areas of i
Tetworks anag conrect

ousInesses to provide oJr custormers with Lltra‘ass

filbre broadband

5. Home building division
Diuring the year, we succes

dlly entered the house

Sulding sector acgu mmg blvia Homnes wine fk Fas

Q,

strong track record of developing homes ir a
The cempany 15 a full-wervice

developer, rmearng it

sustainable marner

roper
from the design,

crovides sery

aate] 'v:ormg and then final

CNSTUCTOrN 10 ensl of qualty

WOTKImans o

. Praperty tending, Retirement Ultrafast fibre . .
taﬂgfr;;asg‘s developrment villages, private broadband across Res;d;é;lté?:lhouse
gas. financing nospitals the UK 4

reserve power

Ciseratl

Constructon Operahornal Congtrecton
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Our business at a glance

The strength of our Group's strategy is in both its
operational diversity and the return profile of these
busmesses Cur lerding business provides fiexibrlivy
and strong réturns over the short term, while our
energy, healthcare, fibre and nome building
divisions offer visib'lity and stability of returns over
the ionger e

Tre scale of our busress is a key strength, enablng
LS 10 &ac qmrf large-sc
wel as the opportumt/ o enter
merirnal risk to tre whols Group by selecting

Sector split”

Wind 22% —

ar 20% - 7

i
Reserve power 6%

Other 3%

H B Owning and operating assets 69%
BE Lending 31%

‘Sector spit g gnven by vaiue

Fern's sector
allocation

businesses wiln comoretensive cusness plans and
strang rmanagement teanrs. T1is enaties us to
contirue to aversify our busimess without
comprom.sing on the guality of our oneraticns.
Owver the past three years, we have successfully
entered the
oW Six Companie
uizrafast proadnzn

Shre ocroadband secior and we now
1o deliver

=S with exciting p.anrs
the UK.

- Healthcare 1%

Property 27%

- Reserve power 2%
—Salar 1%

- Fibre 5%
--Healthcare 478

" Landfilt gas and biomass 9%

. as represented on the company balance sheet of Fern Trading Limited.

hpe ¥
SRR E RS dn HE




Our business at a glance

Where we oparat

i

We are proud that the businesses
within aur Group make a positv

0]

contribution to soaety, from
generating clean ene-gy ‘o the /}‘
creaton of homes and the provisen

of quaiity heathcare infrasiructure. )‘\

D,
e

58 ;*4\

Solar sites
Landfil gas facilities
Biornass power stations

Wind ‘arms

Reserve power piants

Retremerni vilages

OFE>a® -

Hospitals

"

Fibre retworks

As we've grown cur expertise 11 these sectors i the UK weve bean abie t

Q
-
i
il

sur industry krowleage to
take our expertise 1o exciing opnortunities overseas, includirg construcury solar and wind farms .n
Australia, France, ireland, Pzland ard Finard.
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference

We are proud to operate a Group that makes a
pr:-s;we contribution to society across the JK,
gy, pravidirg qL,ath

gererating renewsble erne
r retiremnent living an

ealtn “frastrocture and

care

delivering high-speed broadband to Jﬂd‘-l’“’“’li‘d

areas of the country

Energy
We currently own 220 energy sites, croduc.rg
3750GW a vear

aoTes,

a million

ire fern Commun ty Furd 1s a sacial enterprise 7on
Ly the Group, which werks 1o distrbue community

funds generated from our wind farms Thus year, the
Fern Community Fund nas awarded £14m o loral
COMm™Mun.ty Qrodps, supportec 12 local uriversity
students througn our Student Scholarship Fund,
and pfc-wdec; a wirter fuel subzidy to 706 resdents
who are (ocal 1o the Group's assets

Healthcare

Cur retiremert villages provide hign-quatity,
cortempcrary 'wing spaces, with 379
accommodanon unitz currently in place. ana
schemes in varods stages of developrment ¢iferng

over 500 addinonal accommaodancn units.

A frierdly commun'ty 1s ac the hieart of our
retirament villages. wrich is why i our
developmenis we provide central fachities and a

hub of social actvity for cur residents.

Lending

Tre toans we made during tie vear have nezlped to
fund the construcicn of student accommeaodation
and much needed residental properte

We cortinue (o extena loans to 24 tax drvers and
fleets to enable therr (C use electric vehicles,

reducing Carnon ermissions in our capital,

Fibre
Through our Abre division we ae buld’rg out the
hire cootic broadband rewwork acrocs the UKL Four

of Our rmanagement leams are [ocussed on

Cukding out fibre cotc broadband retworks for
res.dertal customers ana small cusiresses and a

fitr s bu'lding a Fore network to dever enterprize

connectvity Qur sixth s 3 software developrment
Company cperaling in the fipre sector ard
Toproviding serv-ees 10 Cur groun companies

D OWithin this aivs on o we have plans to create 4
§onewverk provding conrectiviy to over ore million

Croperties in tha next three yesrs, many of which

1oare in small towns and villages that don't currertly
nave access to internet connactivity fit for moden

ways of warang and commuanicat.ng

Mooty are our fitre bus.rneszes ornairg

i connect ity to underserved cormmunties, they are
alss generaung emp.oyimenrt oppart.mbes for
Yoyoung ndividuals via traming academ es and
apprerticeship scnerres, and are drving diversity in
Telecoms, with one of our cornpacies having
@aenched an

into the sector

urnber of irntatives 1o recruit woenan

Home building

Our normre buitding drvizion utibses a igh
proport on of sustainapcle timeer frame construction
methods and installs ar source reat m”lps iy alt
properties, leading the way in this sector and

helping reduce carbon emissions

ik et iarps
[HERTTG

sty
il

Fyxinadied MisaEih Hal BTN
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Our strategy in focus

Chur businesses

Energy
Throwgh cur enegy divizion, the Group Gwns and
operates ererdy swes which supply gas anac

electncity ire the network, as weil. as consracting
ray sites

al we ow

renewable ene for future sale Of the 220

energy sites tf rans operate, 194

renewable energy riboung ro e Grou

posiion as one of the

renawable energy from oo

i the UK. Energy sites are Lyg
fo

generate stable pronts

fea o

slly expec

y years, as sueh

owning and operating these businesses 1s attractive

to the Group because of therr potentia. to detyor

predictakle provts cver the iong rerm.

Renewable energy sites generate power lrom

sustainakile sources and sell energy praduced e er

dirg2 iy G large ncustnal Consumers or 1o e
2 enaergy

gualify for goverrment ircertves, which rezLlts in 4

network Many of our renswat! sies atss

porton of tne gererated erergy berefiing rom

rates that are locked in’ for a specified pencd once
and accreditaten nas

mpact

a gualfy.ng site 1s operatic

boen q;ranted‘ This, has reduc
of the volatiity e energy or

JH do rot cualify for

certfives, we gre s \’ﬁ"] more

ed tome of the
rlonag ice forenasts
A Ny S1tes bl ir t"\e

nisior ¢ gcverﬁmer:[ |
i

Ml N the marke: ‘o sites ke the ones we own

and opéerate.

Oyng and operatirg energy stes s 3 core part of
rategy and currently makes up alrrost 50% of

ref assets [ ns part of

Cur U

the Group's our Group has

Did yvou know?

generated higher returns this year Tnar exgecied
due toc mar<et condiucns but crucially it has the

cotential to provde 2abie réturns over the long-

M. This comrbralion s <ey TG our sfrategy ©
Daance risk and return across the rarge of G- m;p
vities 1o ge-erate target returns for sharehoders

"Our energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

aity erergy sites we Own, we

e to cecure i ong-rerm Arancs nG o from

Mainstroarm Lanks ai o SMDetlive rates o S :

Cul returns which neles us o det*ver the leve! of

eturns cur sharencide s expect
Whie o

the solar enerygy sector, e Grougs nas bull

Ur renewdc'e enargy Dusr

er ad:z

experuse acioss oth
neiuding

ent techrolog ce
onshor wind, biomass and ianafll 9as
supported by reserve power plants which gprovige

tackup power fo ‘ne hatonal Grd. The Group

therefore benefits rom aversificaicn w.thin this

cart of its pusness, since weaker cond gons for

2oy orodacion rom one technology often requtt

nostron g production elsewhiers The CGroup also
gans sigr tberaht from its scale in this sector
33 Cur bu< ness s pwﬂad acr

vastly reduc ng tre risx o Group proftabihty of ore

site suffers an operational disrapt.on

if laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from
London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

in acdition to cur UK sites, the Group is developing Since returning 1o normal working gatterns we have

sites overseas, 14 junsdictiors that we urderstand seen ar ncrease in the number of patients paying
Trese presert ar attractive opportunity as they for ther own treatment as they face long wanting
butle on our sector expertise ir countries at an

earlier stage of rernewable dave'lopment. Currerily

[ sts for NHS treaiment, Despite the lifting of
widespread restrictions across the UK, Covid-19
conhinues tc, afect the acute care sector with a
stressed MNES znd increased infection corniiroi
measures that rermzin in place

we cperate wend farrs in freland and France and
sclar sites ir “rance and Australia We Fave severa!
Wing sites uncer constructen in Poland, France

an A 51ra
d fustaa Lending

Donng the vear we acquired rine resarve nower Lending continues o

b
plants ard one erergy from waste site Following znd has proviged the Group with
r
I

constructen, we scid two wind farms in Finlard and CasSn generalive seclor over ne

>h“ft|j after the year end we also so.d Darlingto This wel-estabished part of our Group mainiy

FPorm, & large zolar aite .n Ausirauwa, consists of property end.ng, which orovides
shore-term financing 1o experienced professional
Healthcare Z - ¢F

rogerty deveinpers, buy-to-let land.oras seexing
Thrcugn our Feali~care divis on, the Group prorerty bers. buy 7

ol

bridging fnarce, and developTent Ai~ancing,
operates in the prvate rmedica, and retremen: [virg 93 F 9

which provides short

o8]

. . nd medium term financing
sectors Qur retrement living business, Rangeforg,
OWNS ang ooerates two retrement viiages m

W ltshure and Narth Yorkerire and < carrently A xey benefir of the scale of our Groug and of e

ceveloping three further sies for future operations busress trat we have cuill up N thes sediorn 15 oLr

abiity fo mit gate r.sk throdgh having a large

Our private medical business, Ore Healthcare owrs
rumiper of snort and medium term woans spread

and onerales two private hospia:s in Kent and )
across small projects o individuat borrowers. We

Hertforashice, providing the very best level of cara

proactively marage counterparty risks through

in modern, we'l equipped hospial facrites ‘
ndertaking careful borrower due cillgerce, taking

"Lending continues to be a
important part of our
business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve yvears.
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Our strategy in focus

SeCUr Ly over aserts UMC Ay on a first charge baws

tive oan-to-valle rancs

and mainiEaining corsery

Not all loans will perforr'r‘ as expected ard these
measures Felp (o minimise the impact of
cerformance issues on an incividual lcar. This s
furtner mitigated Through the value that we lend o
ncvidual porrowers, relative 1 our total inen

which s currently spread on avera

woans, with an average indviduat loan of £2 3m

Flbre division

Our fibre aivision includes five operational

companies ouldng fbre networks in the UK and
one software devecpment cormpany.

fhrough cun resigertia: B bre cusinesses, we are

=

bulaing new grysical fore networks for
far hiave buit ous

e pars of Devon,

commuriies ir the UK and <o
aciure it unoersary
Somerset, Dr Wiltshore, daraps!t
ershire and ine Home Counites

fibre mirase

yrset, ure.

Worcest We are
a mina to pass over one milior herres over the

reéx: three years

Buiiding these large networks involves conrecurig

phone exchanges 'r tng

arge datacenires and t
UK witn bomes and businessas, ef'e
replacing the copper wires that were laig n the first
ralf of
Ciganet are verncally integ-ated,
the fibre infrasiructiure and alzo have the erd

clively

tne 20th century. -Jur«%@ig Swe g and

as they both owr

custormner reiat:onship as the nternet serv.ce

e

cropider o )

7' Allpeints owns fiore mfrastruciure
f=]

and will onboarg otrer (8PS 1o the Alipaints network

to sell connectivity to the end customer,

Through Yorboss, we are bullding a neswarian
London 10 sunpy business-to-business 'B2B")
erterprise conrectvity direct to bus ness
custorners Vorbess has installed over 500k of
fibre 1 snce 2020 and has
recently launched 2 single 10G0Hps oroduct (o

market

outic cantes in Londo

. recagnising that ambmous Londan

sinessed wll gackly require mere than the 1Gops
connect vty they've raled on to date

We nave seen ragd

‘o growt in our fibre division

ol
simce 2018 and we expect this dvision to contnae

Sver Hmre,
aly £ of
olans ana reach

3 larger part of cur busmess
The Croun expects
by 2025 1o fulfil s cuiltd ©
rare cammuniiigs in need of ulirafass broadoand.

to become
Lo spend agproxima

Camiat

Home building

Cur niewy bome owlanrg business, thvia s a “ull

service nousebunder, acquirrg ard, deve.oping the

site, and subseqguently selding the homes 1o

nciude amix of
e howses and strive e

ndividual cuyers Tneze sites open

market and afforga deliver
mgh quatity asorzh

groweng fast wath projecied annuat turmover of

cnal homes The ousiness s

o0

£250m ard G0 houses built per vear forecasted
witin the next 2-3 years




Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activites to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Pawut Lathany - o oo b

Paul is Chiel Exacutive of Fern and 1s resporsible for the day-to-day runming of the
business. He s alse a managng director of Gciopus irvestments Limsted (O,
where he has worked since 2005, Of iz a key supsiier of resource ana expertse
te Fern. Paul's dual role ensures that this relationship warks effectively a~d ir the
best interests of Fern's srareholders. Paul has nad var ous geseral maragerent

and 'ntemnal consuiting roes acrss g numbar O° secters and brings with hirr

a wea'th 0f indJstry and DUsNess expenence

w= o Heith Willey 0> 20,

A et s an asscoate orofessor of strategy ard entreprereusship at _ondon

Business Scheol He also holds var.ous ron-execubive directorships and advisory
roles at high growth and more mature companies In ks role a5 non-execut ve
Crgirman N2 s responstle for the effective cperation of the Board, as well
a5 Its governarce, He ornings 1o the Farn Lusineszs ndependent commercial
experience ganed from his tme i academia, private eguity nvastrment,

consuliing and varicus hand<-01 cperalionas roles

Pebtay Barlow o oo v Thon

Peter hae over 30 years' expenerceainirternational financ'ng of infrastructure and energy

As a senior executive for Internatonal Power, Peter weas respensible for arranging over
S12hbn of project and corporate furding, as well as banking relationshps and treasary
activities. He has spent over 20 years workng interratorally for 4SBC, Bank of

Armerica and Nomurg, finanong acgusitions and greenfield projects in the energy
and infrastructure sectors. His combingtion of Boardg-level finarcing end erergy

experience over numercus energy sulb-sectors, and his all-rcurd knowledge of
ali the sectors in which Fer operates, acas signiicant value to tne operaton of

the Board as well a5 its strategy formation anc deployment.

Tim Arthar o0 -0 v e
Tm s a chartered accouniart with more than 25 years’ nmternational expenence
as a fnance director of botn public ard private companies Intially he worked
for Price Waterhouse in Birmirgham ard Chicago. More recently fe was Chief
Financiai Cfacer of Lighisource Renewabie Energy Lic, a global leader in the
funaing. development ard long-term operaticon of soiar photovoltaic projects,
Tim brings extensive fnancial and accountancy knowledge ts the Beoard as
wall as an understanding of dynamic technology businesses gained from mis

executive positions.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks

Management identify, assess and manage ris<s

asscoared with the Group's business of ives and
strategy Risks arise from external souces, those
which are ‘nherent commercial nsks ir the marnket,

and fror’r‘ opergticral rnisks cortaned witkin the

cesses ermployed within the

[l rick exposure is managead across
the Group ‘hrough the dwversifcaton of activities,

Lottt by secior and geography.

Energy Div:sion

The principal rsks tnat the Group are
are descr ped bex
FClonNs we take 1o reduce tn

exposed to
ow, slong with the mitigating

e potentat impact of
the rig<. We also include our assessment of whetrer
the likelihcoa of the risk has increaseq, decreassd

or rermained the same.

Rlsk Mztlgatlons Change
Market nsk « Contracts are ertersd into which fix the ncorne for a
The enargy seCior i expenencing porucr cf t'ﬂe mercy generaten By cur SItes.
zigrificant turbulence ang there s » Long-term government backed offtave agreements dre
a nsk that forecast evels of rcome in place. suck: as the Fenewable Oblgaticn Certificaton
are Net achieved gue (o changes in UROCT scheme 30% of our energy wcome was
wholesate energy prices, off- tak-f generated from fOL revenue
COMTECES OF goverment sulysig + We ergaae vt the Qovernerert ana e Giice of Gas and %
Due to this urbulent ervironrmeris, Electricty Markels MOFZEM ) 1o contrbuie I ar mdusiry voics ;mcréased
the potental forrcreased wIth palicy makers who sst future regutatory requirements. lda2 o market
Irterverion by the reguiator 15 also nstabil ty!
a sk,
Changes in Goverriment polcy
rmay result in rediced incore
streams within the greup due
wdditiona levies
Operational risk: . Uf\uadmab Wiy of the weathier « rmtgated througn
s of erergy produced may dversifhication of tecnnongies and locat on of sites
be lower than anuc.pated due o = ROGU.Ar 327vICing OF 355QTE IS Lnaertaker 1o ersiure assets e
sub-optimal veeather conditiors are keptr gou-d [€o] n: tor and minmise the nisk that s
or performance 1ssuas with Mo crange
aquipment, whica may resultm
swnm art unr"ar ned dowrt me
Fmancml r:sk .
Revenues (from erergy
generat:on; or tale proceeds Overtcas siies
[fromr the sae of sites) generated Increased f:-rn’e
from Gverseas Sites are lower than r?j\?;’r‘ﬁfr:&
expected duo o fuctual onsin
foreign excrange <ates
Construction risk: . S0 enters fiked grice Contracts wth contractors
Construction of ine sites takes rere appropnate Lo reduce expostre 10 increasng costs m

lorger oris more costly than
antic pated aue to rescurce
avaliabilicy or rcreased cost of
rAW rnamwenalsg
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Mltlgatlons

Market risk o Marnagement regularly reviews the competiive landsczpe

Exnected sales frorn customers ntarget buid areas to ensure pians do nct conflict with
areower than enticipated due 3 other alternatye network opsrators.

rcreased competiion from other o Managernent engaces proacively with the Office of

orov-gers.

Communicat-ons and the Government w ensure the
Lenefits of srgiler Lperalus are well urderstoos and s
stz are appropratey represented.

\Ne are ary act ve cartcipant in retevant ﬁdus-’fy t“omes

Iwcrﬁa:cj
[due to more
L(“m f‘tlf(‘)'.‘- Iri

the marketi

particularly those representing alernaive netwo

ooerators

Construction risk: « The GI’QLJD naz contracted with a nurber of differert
OrStrLCT of the retwark sLpplers toregucs the exposure to any one ndividual
Construc C 2 folel y

=L

‘3w Takerials

Operational risk:

"‘ﬂger OF S MOYe O Sy
than enticipated due to re
avalabivty or ircreagse

O

a <

ety Selecton of ontsodrce sariners s manzged
tnrougr a detaded procurernent process with leng erm
visibility of work alowing pariners o plan firancal and
ple resources accordingly
« YWhere suosly Cnair pros "L'TL‘ are expectad for o hical
remns our teams generaly have 6 months siock of fibre,
duct ard other matenals on hara, and advance order
@c*‘mf:ﬂ ﬂqmorvwm WL l(\mg @ad hmes

« Qur networks are builtin a resitent way with diverse

ncreased idue
o INCreasirg
aemard for
rescuCe m
the sector ag
aterrative

retwork
orovigers scale
kLt

route f‘rt\or" should a fa lLre coourin one route, LA
drredat.e leading 1o polental ioss Thiz, cartined wits an ab ity 1w dennfy and resolve
o customers ans reputational connectivity issues awsckly, mirnmses downtime of the
darwa"-e networks.

MNetwork service s interrupted or

P
i Eiteageteity

ghasudins’ TimmaraiTiany i
e e R gt
TS el (s T Lt e - zamaw
A Sy IiEy Sl

"vw.ﬂévo'»(nl s
et i e
i

i uuus- e N
Sttt ettt

s wat e $
R et [ MRS i
T e s L s o T S b S SA bE e T b R Ftd L
i i M e e
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk

ST bR e ST L SR T RN T ek ST T i

Market risk:

ncreasing inflaton and inerest
rates lead o a rmarket-wine
afordatuility issue, resultingina
crop In property values across al
sectors of real estate This rmay
Impact our ability to racover 3
loan in full through a refinance
ar _\Lﬂ@

Counterparty rlsk

Laans may be mads (o unsuwitabie
counterpartas, impacting our
amhty o recover the loar balance
i full

Rlsk

Market nsk (Healthcare and
Home Buitding):

Afallin house prices could
impact our abilty to gererate
expected reverue from: the sate
of apari-nents 0 our ref"eme’"t
v llages ard houzes buslt &

Constructlon rlsk (Healthcare
and Home Building):
Construction takes lorger or

15 riore coStly than arucipated
CJE 0 resoUce avaiiabiity

Health and Safety risk
(Mealthcare):

The greventon of 1njury or
avoidable lozs of e of qur
patients 15 of LtMost iMmeortance

ang s antical to rmamiarming a
good reputaton chgation as
a result of medicat matpracice
could result i damags o
reput il drd rorease J costs

Mitigations

« The wams pro-act vely manage cur Sos: tlon ir the
markettlace and are prepared to enforca where neaded |f
3 loan mowes o aafaLlt

« Our loars are made at ccmwvamc war-to-valus L TV)
Fatios with a rnaxsmun. JTY o

e SeCUPEl 3gaingt pnysical underlying tenurty,

s Loanrs
sach as a cnarge over the property Or Sner asets af the

borrowsr Trese are t;,"r:rca‘w cr a fratchargs basis to
CRsUrE Miaxirrurn LR ance of recovery should en »‘ CrLament
acton be mﬁ-eci(-"'

+ Thorovah due diligence ¢ performed prior 1o whting
lcans, int ucmg procerty orand valughiors and credit
checks acne en Dorowers

. cre (nans are written for assets undsr congruohon,

Healthcare/Home Building Divisions

Mitigations
« Puannin ’msmm T U ‘ewﬁiopﬁn iarﬂ are ophimised 1o
rnaximess revanges ard reduce the rise of losses o sale,

o The Group erters fixed price conlracts wnere gooropriams
G e Ul 2XpOTWE 1 INCreasing matena, 2osfs.
o The Group only works with reputanle 3rd parties with 2

strong tratk recorg o delverning sirm lar peeects

. '%‘e Fruub mantars 'cbua Lobgies ang procec
relating o the provision of med.cal serv ces We review tn.s
trcuah congusting regular irternat inzcecticns, and are

ire

alsc subiec to external Nspections by requlatery nodies.
. nsararce policies n piace o cover
S5 Gue to medical malprachce clams

AT S AR gy B TEEY Y B L S YL n S vaant seamad P

BRI « o v - NPT,

Change

e

reaced idue

to unstable

SCONM'T
climate)

increased {oue
to unstable
eCongmic
chmate]

fas
e

Mo char

e
fo

No change
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Market risk: « Where f;uama rate debt s in place (where interest vares
Arvincreate n Dase rates may irune with an underly:ing berncnmark rate;, the Group
nerease Costs on debt faciites. enters into heag g arrangemerts 1o fix 3 cortion of these
imgacting the Group's ablity cayrrerts throdshout the term of the facilty. Hedgirg
seryice cebst a5 1t fads dus. arran gements are outined in Note 21 of zr‘e qrnanc-al

515 temm
Liquidity risk: e A jﬁ’ta\ ed casr flow forecast is prepared and reviewsd
Foor management of cash within by managerrent cn a monihly bnsis, inccrporating cash
thie Group couls Impact the aval.aclity and casn reguirements acress the Group. Onar
Group's abilily to meet coigators least a guariery basis this is ekam-" weththe Board
as they fal dre o Tre Groap monitorn: bank coverants on an ongo NG basis R

o
10 encure contnued aonerence to covenarts Whers

covenants can't be reat, forecasts arg ugdated for e
lower cash aval'anle as a resuit of the restnchic:

+ Tre Grodg has a flexiible finance facility wrich can oe
drawn on at smort notice to meet immediate bus ness

No change

rieeds
Health and Safety risk: « We ~gve developed robust reatth and saety policies in
Tre safely of our erngloyees [ale rrr =1 ce WL 1SDAS00L across the Group 1o ens.are
ard those emoioyed throuch trie wel -peing of our staff.
contracts are of paramourt » Healtn SPd gty tramrgas grov.aed to our staff and )
meartance There s ankonat contractors rﬁgu ar basis increased
accidents in ine workplace couc
resull in sericus mlwy ar deafh
Cyber Securlty risk: . ”Ve employ a \.m—f \ﬂformfmon Securry ufﬁo—r \ Cl\O )
An attack on cur IT syswams and who Is responsiple for data secunty across the Group ard
data could ead w disrupticn reports gquarterly to the Beard. —
of our operatiors and loss of o Tne CISC works closaly with Gur cusinesses to ersure P
cusiorrer data Loss o rmisuse adequate starndards of secunty ard information No change
of cata may result in reputational managaerment are rmet
damage regLlatory action under » Each of cur busineszes that Fold customer data has their
GDr’R :mci pu:entm f'r own dedv‘dued resource ‘.‘or \T and ecumty,

The strategic report was aporoved by the Board of Directors on 10 December 2022 and signed on its behal® by,

PS Latham
Cirector
6 December 2022
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Corporate governance

Section 172 iii} statement
The Board cornsidg
regulrements of sectior
200¢€ (the "Act’), ard has
way that would be mos

1 that they have ddhemd HeRtals
1172 of thie C

e ingocrd fath, acteoin a

mipares Act

hkely to promote tre
e Croug for the benefit of ks rmembers
ard 1o all staxehalaars and

success of th

as a whale {~awngr

matters set out in sectan 172{11a-f} of the Act)
in the decisions taken durrg the year ended
30 Sune 2022

In the performance o its duty 1o promote e
successs of the Troup, the Board has egard o a

ters, including tre likely
Y GEC
nstens 1o the views of ine Groun's key staxehaolders
o tuild trust and ensore it fully understands the
potenusl irmpacts of e decsions it rma<es
Board fulfis these dunes party Dy gelegatinn o
comrmmitiens and the boards of cubsidiary

whe oparate within a corporate

number of "na

consaguance o ar ions i the long terr ang

The

undertakings.

avernance frarnewank acress the Graup

At every Board meetrg a revievw of neatth and

across the group, finang

safety al and onarational

u

performance, as wel asg legat and regu.aiory
comiphance, 1s underta<en The Board also review
other areas over ihe course of the fin:

o's busin

nchuding the Grou 258 strate

stareholder relaled matters, aiversity ans inclusivily,

eny ronmental matters, corporate responstalty, and

governance, complance and legal maters
Principal decisions

We define principal deci
that are of a stra

ern by the Board as
zic nature and

ctakeho

consider that the ‘olcwing are

thar are [Cer

ritio any of our k
groups The Boarc
examples of principal decisions it maoe n

ended 30 Jure 2022,

the year

« bvaluating anc deciding tc move ahead with
ncreasing wind operatons, which s part of

our renewacles division. In August 2021 the

Croup acquirena a large scaie, ready 10 Consruct

windd site in Australiz 5 deployment aligns

with the Grouu's strategy o contnue to

trate
develcn rearwabie enargy sites which provide
table, Tre

Board cansidered the aopportunity and Biow U

oredic long-term revenue streans
al gned with cur objectives o Take a positive

antr bution o the commurnity and ervircmment,

Tre Group deciged o expand 1Nt cur rewest
butd ng n May 207

acoured Bhivia hormes, a fol-service property

cwvis.on, Foute Z the Group

geveloner provdng tervices frorm the design

o the engineerng and then Anal construction

qua'iny wornamanshg

o ensiire the debvery

Diversfy'ng e Group's asser base and entering

nto this new secror has baen well thouont
Tre Boarg
within the

soctor befare decidr s 10 Move anean wirn :

our wilr long lerrm growth in rmimd

assessed the siategic

CCEOriun
this
acaaasiticon, consiaening o this would impact
exsting butiresses within the drvision andg how
-d with the ateg ¢ objec
aebver worg-tern valus and gredictable growti

It aligne Sves o

Group’s str

for cur tharenoidears

Reviewng and ced.ding to moyve ahead with
Ncreasing biomass operzuons which s part of
our renewanles divizicn In Ocwober 2021 the
Croup acquired a large scale, wasie-to-energy
cotlard Tris geployment
strareqy to continue to

corstruction stein S

augns witr the Group's
dwversfy the
sizes whizn provide predctable,
TEVENUE SIreams

Groug, develon reraewatle energy
ong-term
slence aganst
sale onoing changes in the U< energy
Mhe Board conside spportunity
ard now T aligned with cur objectves

a positive contr.bution o the comrmunity
ard ervironment

and provige re
Wrole

market,

.
‘ed the

/1

maKe
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Corporate governance

+ The board decided o change audit firrms via &
tencer process ior the year ended 30 June 2022,
Tre Groun nad cranged sigriaficantly since the
previous auditors were appomted and therefare

we were unakle to relizbly assess the value for

rmonegy we received Three firms urdernwvent

the wender process ard cmst & Young LLP wers
electea pecause of tneir strong cormercial

urdersandwrg of our bLsiness, effcient audt

']J

rethcdology ana value for morey

Business strategy

Cur business strategy s set out o pages 21w 14 of
tre Strategic Report Maragernen: prepares a
d=ma'led Groueo budget which is approved by the
Board onan annual bas s ara forms the hasis “or
rescurce plarnng and deployment

me
Takirg decsicns concerring the

3

b 15 strategic focus, Dut also te other
e arious

tne long-term irﬂpa:t of 15

I's}
d
actiors o~ the Group's future and reputatior

Shareholders

Sharehoider relations and generating sharekolder
value is 3 key censiderationr when the Boeard is
max:ng strategic decisions. Tne prime medum by
which the Group cormmunicates with shareholders
15 through the annual report and financ al
swatements, which aim o provide snarehalders witn
a full understandirng of the Groug's activities and its
results This informator s published on our webs.te

at www.ferntrading.com.

Employees

The Grodp's empicyees are funcamrental s ne
overal success of the pusiness, ~he Direciors fulfil
their duty to employees by entrusting oversight to
subsiciary Boards which the Chief Execut've of the
Group also sts on.

“he drectors of the subsigiary urdertakirgs
marage the day o day aecision making,

engagerrent and communications with employees

and ensure that oeople are re
va.ued with respect to pay, berefit and conditons.
We “uliy realise that our employees wisn o be

d fariy and arc

nformed ard con
WOk

sulted on matters arfeq-ﬂg their
and to te involved in problern-soiving
affecting their own areas of interest and
responsiility. The Growp = firmly commitied to a

potcy of good communication at all levels and we
air to establish a climate which constantly
encourages the open flow of informaton and

ideas Preser‘.t.y this irclu
cal level and the publication of monthly key
perf Tance ndicators coverng oulpul, operating

costs, and ~ealth and safety

The heath and safety

O

ermp.oyees N the
>r the Group, given

(.}>

workplace s a czowtir, f QCLS T
its broad operaticral busingss T
Hea th & Safety Reporting at gach

e Directors review
boara meeting to
enzure approonate ool es and procedares are n
place to protect the heash and safery of our

wors Where
theze are followed
Cw th the Boarc

ere are
po wrtial deficiercies orissues,
d or aamely basis

Ve
aving oversight ¢f the actons taken

Tre Groug odtsciurces activies and managenent
of certain cperational activties to external supphbers
Whiere activities are cutscurcead the Board ensures
trat tney are managed by reputabls supplers who
meet all tne retevant industry and reculatory

comritments as well as treating employees fairly
Expected standards are documented in all service
cts and adhierence

contra to these ase continually

mornitored by Board througr their service

agreemert with Ociopus Investments Limited.

Suppliers and customers
The Group actsin a ‘air marner with all supoliers
and customers and seeks to mamntain stron

busiress reiationshios with them. This is ach eved
by all contracts being negotiated through a fair and
transparert tender process which includes
assess.ng the rmpact on the long

des monthly team brefings

-term objectives of




B

f.
i

3 | GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance

the Group. We review cur payrment pro

times agamnst contia
suprliers are paid prompty and nis information “or
available on the www.gov.uk

ESSINIg

cts every six months to ensure

the company is
website

¢ b acts

manrer to all Customers ac
Y

fairly and iri g tra~sparent
1055 all divisics and

The Group ensure

services, and act ages o resowe any aispules

sr defauits. 7 czely ronitors customer
with trig m

If business pedformance

maragament edm o

does

roetncs
u-cersta
~olm

eat customers expectalions.

Lirvi ted
partret ard supgher with

Tments

the Board conside
o be a key pus nies
responsibity for the provisicn of operationsl
overs ght,

CIopJSs irves

e
dnancial admeristration and company

secretanal services,

Community and environment

The provision ard operation of susainahble
infrastructare s at the centre of the Gronp's
strateqic goals Trrough s business activities the
Group seeks to make a pos tive contribution to the
commurity envirenment and economy Our
renewable energy busingss s nielping the UK mest
its renewable energy larqets, our private hosoitals
o sgnout the Covd-15

paridem.C by provicing treatment for non-Covid-19

have supnorted tne N=St

NHS patienis that olrerwize could not nave npeen

carned out, 2nd our fore networkc will give people

inrural comrnunizes acces: o nigh-speed

broadband.
Business conduct
A5 Directors cur ranthon s o behave resnonsibly,

SNsUNng managemsnt Sperais tng busness win

mtegnty and in accordance with the high standards

faevradeae PRYTP

i 2 DusINEss

oLy bu

of conduct and goverrance expected o
sucn as curs. Qur intention through
strategy (outlined o~ pages 1110 14) 5t
ceciors and wo nat share

SINess
pcrate I
«with ctmer businesses

cur values

Business ethics and governance

The Board is responcible for ensunng that the
acthviiies of the Group and its vanous businesses are
nducted in compliance w.th the law and

appi;cabte ple

ernance and regalatory regimes, and

n adhe valing best practice for tne
refevant inaustry This nciuces reviewing internal
contrals, ensunng trat there 1 an aporopriaie

balarice of <kl ang cxperience represented on the

SR WITh e

stalements
F affairs of the
sratament

Board, znd ensuwicrg that the financat

give & true and far view of the state o
Group Further detat can oe founa in the
of drectors roscorsinil ues
to 30

S

on page 29 In the year
Jurie 2022 noy areas of congern ~ave peen

flagoed in thic regard

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The Board's policy or employee, humar righte,
soTial and CoOmm Lty B8Ues, environent policy
FLGLON ana bribery mattars s3e0
wrs Report or page 29 The Board
actively promotes a corgorate cuture that s based

ardant-c S chiscu
Sirec

inthe &
o ethicas valu v behanours.

ues an




3| GOVERNANCE

Group finance review

Heview of finengial statements

The purpcse of th-s report is to provide addtional
explanatory irformatior on the fingncial statemerits
I reeasuring cur performance, the Sngrcial
measures that we use :nciuce those that have been
cerived from cur reported resutts -noorder 1o
elirrinae factors that distort year-an-year
comgansons. Thosa are corndered non- 02 AP
finznicial rreasures

A reconciliat:on of these (o the fina~cial results can

be fourd in note 28 of the notes o g Gnancia:

SEtEmens.
The firancial staterients show assets at cost, &3 sucn
they do not refiect t-e futdre va.ue that we expect o
genve from these bus

2022
£ 000

711 830

Fevenue

Ea TOA

194 916

47’ 604
360 901

793 169

Nei dpb

Ntt azsets

2 219, 448

the share price and rmay not reflect changes 'n the
I

ful market value o
the Group

fassets or pusinesses owned by

A nurber of acguistions were made dunng the
year, including nine operatioral reserve power sites,
a waste toc energy site under construchion, a
corstructon ready wind fare i Australia and
saventeen soia- rocitop siies under construction
Shorty afte
Carlington Point, a large solar wter Australia

the year end in July 2022, we <cla

9]
%)
C
o
5
©
=
pas
)
W]
O
tas
")
c
[l
(o}
@l
>
™
o
3

sion, we had built up

casn resarves gt year end of £255m wnich imcluded

romn placing external

3
uw
3
DJ
5
W
=
)
=
o

b peor o sale

{restated) Movement

2021

£ 000 £000 %
425 302 286528 57,
104 036 970 880 87%

(22 663)
385 512

1,887,842

Financial performance

Overal, the Group has reported a proft before tax of
£47em for the year ended 30 June 2022, which s a
270 I improvement ort the prior year (2021

222 7m loss restated) Overall ERITDA" increased by
87% 10 £195m {2021 £104m rectated), whicn s
primarity due to increased energy generation as well

as increased energy prices.

Revenue increased by £287m to £712m (20254

‘Larmings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisauon.

£425m) wrich was predominanily drven by a 84%
INCrease in reverLe winin our erergy divis.on This
growth is two fold, imcreased energy generat on
from naving owned/coerated one of our bicrmass
plants for tne ‘ull year and a large soar plant in
Australia reaching commissioning; and a significant
iNcrease in average engrgy prices over the year due
o the rmismatch between supply and demand,
exacerbated by the ongoing confict in Ukraine




Group finance review

Revenue growth was sirongast in our energy
division butl we also saw a marked improvement in
revernde frorm our retirement vitages. This part of
our business Nas repounded well from tra
lockdows reguired by the Covid-19 pandemic
response, seling 41 unts n the year {an mcreaze of
52%) and an increasing in revenue of E7 5m o
£204m {2021 £12.7mi),

T our lending divis.on saw a drop of
(2021, £57m) due
lozn book over the year as Cash was made avalable

to a smaller average

to grow other parts of the busiress
Operatng expenses for tho year were in irne w.in
our expectalions, with (ne increase *r‘marwiy crven

nour fibre doision as

by mcresgsed operating <
It ras expanded Refinancing excernal debt o
cecurs improved terms over the past two years has
contributes 1o 2 decrease nnterect costs of £2.5m

to £32 am 2027 £36 1.

Included v tne results this year s a arofir of £28m

recognised on the sale of two wind fanns in -inlang
and a rezlsat’'cn of £1 6™ of deferred considerat.on

on sclar stes sold i previcus years

Financial position

Continued ¢<ra
etz grow tao £2.219m (2021 £1.

nvastmeanrt has
848m

rencider ineres
soErn nel A
restatad) Intne y
issued 120m shares (2021 1507) for a total
consideration of £204m (2021 £2.317m) Tre
comparatiye year nurmiers include £ 1893m of

cons'dersuon relating o yr

oUp restruciunng.

Net current assets of £808m (2021 £6&83m restated)
have ncreased by £145m, reflecung the redusacrn o
external finararg and ar ncrease in work in progress
within the fiore and nouse blding divisions. Our loan

hook I property lending has decreaseqg Gy O% 0

£330l (2021, £386m), and at 30 Junes 2022
representad 16% of net assets (2021, 21%]
Cash ard cash eqguivaients as at 30 June 2022 were

£256m (2021 £172m). Cazh generated from

B

2021
gside external

operating achvit eased 1o
£342m) wh.ch nas ut\tised aion
org—te'm finarc ng and captal raised by new sharg
We nave vested
bre broadbard sector over

seie

NE

Jbstar

wt‘a ty o the £

he past four years win-ch will requ re further

%]

—

Capitar

T

nditure over ine next 2-5 years, InCreasing cur

xpe
diversiication across sectors

Of the cash neld at year end, £E211m was ~elo 1n

our erergy, heme bullding and fibre subsidianes,

where there are a nurber of construction snd

ash t

Q

INFrasruciure prelects Lreer way, requiring ©
ne readily avarlable for stage paymerts due ir tne

moring after year end,

Lre (2021 £56/mres
cormines o he 5 significant numoer on the

Goodwi, at

Lalance sheet and ansas ¢n the acquisiten of sore

businesses, Acquired husimesses, for exa”’v“

renewable erery sies, aften have & market vaue
in excess o the corrpany's nat assets, reflecting
ther renable

future INncome streams Accour:!‘ng

conventan reg.res that anvy iderthable assets are

narnec On the balance sheet se the accounts

carnol record the baance of the auditonal rrarket

value wrich -::Cffmr‘«af; s the future prohits that sites

are expectzd 1o deliver The additioral valae in

F

excess of the value of fixed agsers themseelves (tucn
33 50l &z Qoo

Put simuly, the market value of the erergy
generaton bus nesses (o ndoed any operationa:

businesses) reflacts tne value of future cxopeced
crohis, nof the cost of sirmply Suy rig argible ass

turbines

ety
SLch as solar parels or wind We pay
miarket value for the sites
xeeed tne value of
clar panels

W g guire, Witich may

(T

denufaple azsets sucn as tre

well, wrich
e value of the expected

1]

and <0 generates good
essentially represents
future income streams Goodwil. recogrised will
graqually be wr.iien o, tynicaily over the life of the
sed

site, as expected returns are real
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Sector perfommance

Energy i (2021 £196m restated), partially driven by increased
As economic activty and global derrand increased ! site costs where £120m was incurred at our
trrougho.ut the year, so teo did wnoiesale energy D obomass sites and S98m at our reserve power sites,
prces, dhven by moverrents i commaodity pr.ce Potee paces for raw mater ais have increased, on
which resutted ir the overall increase i revenue ! average, by £9% due w0 anincrease in the supply
arned across our energy sites These market ! costs The combined cost of sales for the reserve
factors have resultcd in an incroast o rovenuc of P opowor and biomass sites ircreased oy £110m o
BA% 10 £853m (2021 2322m; POE2I7m 2021 107} It shoud be noved that the
! revenue generated oy the biomass and reserve
Cormspondirgy, EBITDA aiso increazed by 112% to 9 ) y :2 he “
s s e . Popower ates incres oy £192m during the y=a- to
E£266m (2021 E126m restated; reflecting the : X . ased by £ “ Y
. TOE253m (2021 ;A6‘r 1}
sigrificant ncrease n erergy revenue Overall iotal
operating Costs increasec by 21307 o £327m :
FY2022 FYz2021 FY2022 FY2021
Production Production External External
(MWh) (MWh) Avallablilty Ava:ial:nllty
Biomass I 050 038 84 6/o 83 2(3
Landirh Gay 240,226 258,06 97.9% 97 0%
Reserve Power 403,355 141,086 94.2% 92 0%
Solar 554,858 517112 97.7% 96 0%

851,214 8&l.v 90.5% 52 1%

3,099,690 2,682,019




3 GOVERNANCE

Group finance review

Heatthcare

He;ttéﬁcare operatscms coninbures
2021, £42mi) to Group revenues “or the year
chtmg h impact of incressad revenug i

es of agartrments at the retrement

rded we
9 pandemic resnonse,

Rangeford Sal
agoes have rebou
required oy the Co
selling 41 units in the year (ar increase of 52X
2021}y ard increasing revenue by £/6m ¢ £20 2

2C21 £12 7.

vill Il from the ockaowns
v L

from

Lending
Revenue from lendrg decreasad oy E14m o £42m

(2321 £87m] onmarly due to & smaller average

icar book for 2022, whech resultac 1 & decre
reverao strearn for the year Tre toial 10an

reduced by 6% 10 £361m at the y2ar and (20
E385m) This reguctaon n the loan book g
cash o oe avanable for opportunties across ¢
sectors

COnstrucnon

withire the Group includieg

acqu sions and
The make-ug of the Woan
o fied sl ghily where we have isstied 3
number of sma'ler oans within the residertial

seciorn 35 well as maore larger 1gans in tne

development sector and the corrmera

EBITDA for the
of £8.7m fro
G his movernent reflecis a

tending division cecreased 1o a loss
m a gt of nearly E2rm in the prnior
year pr@‘«'i‘;iom of E25min
the loan Book against wans to reserve power sites
and a provisior aga nst a healthcare loen of £14m
2022, £35%m was provided

U loans versus Z21m in the prior year

In the year < June

stively new divizion, all the fibre busineszes
famrg Lo ad

reir networks By 30 June 2

are in ke owld nhase and are s

stormnmers ot
division had bund passes over 150,000 homes

1o cortnue for a further
=

“hre Netwworks,

anic paie the bu'ld stage

3-S years a3 we expand i

Althoug buiding a fibre n
ridl eads (0 a priysical asset

work 15 capital rtensive

o baance sheet, the

diesion alse ooerating expenses as the

busmesses scae ther operations and deveiop

mrarket cresence. Overal the division reportec an
ERBITDA loss £554m F2Z 5 loss) which

300 Lne with expectation: and reflects the

developrrnertal stage of the drvision.

As we bunid these networks out, the assets wil be

reccan sedd on the batance soeet at cost whicn

cannot include foture value which s expected to oe
et have been \’wterr‘a"}
ent 1o the share onc

ted to he gererated from the

gererated as the asse

generaies Tnis € whore
the fuiure value expe

ascete 1€ ircliuded
Home building

Elivia Homes w Sredin May 2022 and has

therefore had lrmited impact on the hnancal

performance during tne year The business s
forecast to delver £78m raverye acd L6 5mr
EBITDA

rom the firg

for tre year erded 30 June 2023
tauarter of 2023 ird.cate

Is broaaly performing in lire w

Funding and liquidity

Our stratzgy 15 12 secure 1oag tesm fnarcing at
coniervatve leye.s rom mainsireamt ban«s o
en~sance returns from cur renewakre enargy
dwe rad £E1.0494m of

£

ancirg wth £440m of

businesses Al year en
externa. projec: fir
headroom avaiianle.

T ihe
racternstics suco

& busnesses tha
stable ¢z
as predictacle cost Lase, revenius streams,

Thiz enace
marker considers 1o have

S us Lo acguire

Jovermment ncentives of preven techralogy and as
such have lower returns nat witaout leverage wold
It also allows us
"&ging
o adept this

ce insufficient for our sharenolders
flexit Ly irfinarc ng cur businesses and rma
cash f.ow We boleve that fa ling
strategy wou'd have g negalive Impact an business
returr and sharehzider value over the long term
BO% of payabte is fixen

re we are net significanily exposed to

Approximare
and therefo

our interest




a3
d

3| GOVERNANCE

Group finance review

—

ne current interest rate volatibty We continually
w firancing arrangements (0 ensure that they
is of the
& cash 1s manages in an ag.e
E
ar

are competiiive ang optimised ‘o tne need
Cusiress To ensur
mannern we mainiain a flexibie finance facility
which can ce drawn down or repad o rreet

rmmedate cusiness needs.

tooking ahcad
Tne Group nas ehounded well from the efects of
tne Covid-18 pandemic and has outperiormed
expectations. Wh lst the currert ecoromic outlook
s ang of :haé!omge and Jrcerainty, we articipate

Mgl imegac SLrresuts due 1o the

prediclable revenae streams and cost base, and
sssenrtia, nature of our activities, Cougled wits the
crversiicator we have oult up across the 0usImess,

we are pasticned strongy for tnese turbulent

tmes anead

v particular attention (o the twin
cratleﬁges of rising irterest rates and surging
lend ng and portfeho
maragemren: These trends impact al. areas of the
cusiness and are Lkely tc
ole futLre. =0 we reman cisc

Group’s c main for the

foreseea iplirea 1n our
irvestment approach, continuirng to mantar the
cachto

situation carerul\.y and takeng a pradent apor
any cJrrent and emerging risks

We are posive about the contiruea apportunity

for growth and cont nue to celieve tnat the
business 15 positoned well to take advantage
future growih opportunies across its core
and nouse building
ished = the rrarket and
o make excellent pfogress with roust
ial year in line with

business
areas, me'qy lending
operations are wel estao
continue
performances in tre new financ
our planned s

solar farm .n Australia for a smali

trategy, since the year enc we <ald a
L profit, with
proceeds beng redesloyed into new opportunities,

large

Depioyment into fibre contimues e rol. out in line

re C
with expectations and the Group has now passed

rnore than 150,000 homes oy our fitre retworks,
Sales activity in odr healtncare division remains

strong, with nearly 20 al sales budgst
already completen or reserved across all sites as at

% of arnu

trne end of September

Anrouncod within the autumn statenont as part of
the 2 the UX Goverrn
enact a 45% windfall levy 7

D23 Finance 31l et will
ty Generator
Levy” or "ECU) on whc.esake energy market

of £75/1
up fr

tWh, Tnis iz expecied to

to 31

reveniues In excess
o L January 2023
wor w il be ouolizkhed

apply to the Gro
Marcr 2028 The
-Decerroer 2022, but based cor te inita
rorrpact analysis has beer pefforfnc-d
as at 30 Septerrber 2022 We estimate the impact

exact legisiat

im i

drop rovaluauon of approxrrately £45m
affected, which cortributed to a
rine srare proe to 7 0pn

We expect 10 gererate str
estanliched div sicns for the ¢

iy adcition to the antcipated

assers Tne heaithcare and

atiLrms
from our corning years,
cutflows for our
corstruction phase
fibre gwvisions are we'l imto ther baild phase in une
with cur long-term strategy anc we anticipate
strorg returns over the next five to sever years

LECON Maturity

PS Latham
Director
16 Decemrber 2022
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present thelr report and the audited consolidated financial
staternents of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022

For a sumimary of the Group's results, refer o tne P Ine Groug's objectives and ooicies on financial nisk
Group finance review on page 23 Pomanagement including nformaticn o tne

_ ‘ ‘ exposure of the Groun to crecit rsks, hguidity rigks
The directors have not recommenced payrment of ! Y

‘ P I and rnar<et risks are set cub in note 21 o the
adividend (2021 £ )

1 tnancal statements, Tne Group's prircipal nsks are
cu Poset oot nthe sfrawey o report on page 16

The directors of the Company who were in offce
ar a~d up to the date of signing the

D

gurng e e

irarcial staternents were d by section £1ac (11 of the Companigs
noa LsTaermens werne,

ve elacted to d sclose

PS Latham

ectors repo

Act 2006, tre direztors ha
T nformation requred ¢ be in tho
: of

o dir
: oy Scheoule tre Large and Medurm-s ze
K] W“Fy : rr-j ~cheaule 7 e La ge and Medum-s zed
oLompancs C

1d Groups iACCcoanis ard Reports)
G Barlow 033

ar
i Regulatcrs 20

T Arthur {appomnited 1 July 2022

Refer to rote 23 in the Motgs 70 the Fra-cal Fhe Board recognrices that a corporate culture

Dasen on sound etrical values and bebaviours 15 2

stateTients
assel. The Groun endeavoars € conguct 15
R e A osusimess wite s wegrity, 11 an ethcal, pro‘ 2504l

Refer to the Strateac Report on page 8 P oandresporsible manner, reating our employees,

customers, supphers and partners with couresy

. [N

B N o

Refer (o the Strateg ¢ Report on page 12 7

Applicaticons for employrrent by disabled persons
are gven fuil ara fair consderation for all

Refer to the section 172 statermnent on page 21 :
Tovacanc es, having regard 1o ther particular aotitudes

ard abi. nes. Shoud a persor bacome disabied
wihlLe nthe Group's emcloyment, every effort s

wade to retain trem N employment, gving

Poaliernative train ng as necessary.




We fully realise that our empioyees wish to be
ried and consuited on matters affecting

work and to be involvad in problem-solvirg afecting
her o

infor the)r

cwr areas of interest ard responsibilin Y.

The C

commJanicanuon at all e

sroup s firmly committed to a policy of gooa
vels and we aim to estadlish
a climate which corsiantly encourages the open
flow of informaton and 1deas. Presertly this

1 onehngs at a o
ot maonthly key perforsrance

1 and

ircudes monthly tearr cal level ang
the pubicaton

roeators covenng outplt, CperatNg cost
healih ano safety

Tre Group nas in olace an agreemeart wih QCtopus

investmenrts Limitec 1o provide services 1o the
Groun covenng operat aral overaghe,

admirisiratcr, cormpany secretanal and cempany
~courtrg

. TR
~ w2 4

Tal env ronmenta, sociai
e "ES55)
30 September 2020, The Group recognizes the

eed to conduct its busin SN amMmanner that s

Tre 3card adopied a for

ana corporate governanc palicy or

3

responcible to the environmert, waerever possicle.

As a low energy user, the Company 1as
10 disclose date o s energy and Ccaroon usage‘
Ferni Trading Limited s the only Cormpany in tn
Croup that meets (ne reporting critera anc
therefore no irformationr is provided for the Group
as a whole.

Tne Group's has an Anti-Brbery Policy wnich
irtroduces robust procedures 0 ensure full

compuance witk the
that tne highest standards aof professional ethical
conduct are maintained.

dribery Act 2010 and 1o ensdre

It accordance with the recormendzstions of Tre UK
Corparate Governarice Code, the Board ha
considered the arrangements in olac
staff of the Group or manager of the Group 1o raiss
oncarns, in confidence, wihin
about possible

reportng or cther ma

D encolrage

the'r organisatior

mproprigtes inmatters of finarcial

tders Itis sausfied that adequate

arrangements are in place © allow an independent
invest gation, and “ollow-on action where necessay,

10 taxe place within the organization,

We are cornmittes 1o aching efhic lly and wih

Ineg 5 ara

sty ir all our b,sm ss deain

elatiorsh os and 1o mpementr ntcrcing
effective systerns and controis (o ensd oder-

slavery & not aking
Bosiness o 17 any of our sunpy chan
octligations under the Mogerr Siavery Act

2015 We expect the same h.gn stardards from all

olace ar“j‘m}”mf— in our cwn

el

WHTE Clr
of cur contractors, suppliers and Sther busimess
rarreri. A part of our contracting processes, w
tn compy with the Moagern

<

e
SX[ECT DU SUDDEErS
Slavery Act 2015

The directors are responsibie for preparng the
Annual Report ard the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulation

Comoany law requires the drectors to grepare
Arancial statemenrts for eack inancial year Under
*hat law the directors have prepared the Group and
Company financiat staterrents irn accordance with
Lriteq Kingdom Gernerally Accepted Ac
“ingdom Accounting Standaras,
comprisicg FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting
Stangard applicable n the UK and Republic of
ireland’, and aoplicable law) Under cormpany law

the directors must ~ot approve the fnancial

counting

Practce {Urited

staterments uniess they are satisfied that they give a
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rue and fair view of tre state of a%airs of the Group 3 e et
and Compary and of the profit or loss of tne Group As permitted by 1ne Asticies of Associaton, the
and Company for that period In preparing th : L
a omgany for that perod In preparing the i directors nave the benefit of an indernnity which 4
rarcial starers 5 Pee ire ) od :
finarcial staternents, e drectors are required 1o, 1oa cuabiying third-party indemnity prevision as
- selec: syitabie accounting porcies and then agply | ¢efined by secuon 234 of the Cornoaries Act 2008
them cons:stenty, i The nderrrity was in force throaghout the last
1 financial year and is currently in force,
« slate whether apglcab.e United Kingdo :
Acco;ntmg Standards, comarising FF(;; lud have | - . )
been followed, subject to any rmateriat departures & . ‘ ‘ ‘
‘ i Inthe case of each director in office at the date the
isclosed and explained i7 the financial :

N i Drecters’ Report s approved
staterments;

» s¢far as the direclor £ aware, there 1s 1o relevant

» Take judgements and accounung estimates ha : o ) :
- ; audit m*ormation of wrich the Sroup a-d

anie and prugent; and ~ .
Company’s 2aa1ors are unaware, and

o Friancial statements on fre gong

= ey rave faken ail the stess that trey ougnt
Coreern” Lasis urniess it is iNaspronnae to T T ‘ ) -
ore ¢ that tre G n & . . 1 o have tazen as a director .norder to makes
oresume nakl re FOUD anNd _aOmiDany Wil
: thernseives aware of arwy 1¢ evant audit

continug in husiness : . ‘
; infcrrnation and o estabi sk that the Groun ard
The directars arc al:o responsoic for safeguarding 1 Comipany's auditors are aware of that n‘ormaton
the azsets of the Group annd Company and nence

L A 1 Tris confrration s given and should be mterpretod
for taking reasonable sieps for tho preverticn amd : *

. {onaccordance witn the provisions of secton 418 of
detection of fraud and other rregulantes,

trne Compan 03 Act 2006

The directors are respons’ble for keeping adeolate

PoErrst & Young |2 having | : pp
accounting recoras Lthat are suficient to smow and : il ST‘J urg | having been appointed :n 2027
, - . P have indicatea treir wilirgness (o be reappao rited
caplair the Group and Company's transactions and £
¢ ofor another term and wit, ne progosed for re-
disclose with reazonabie accuracy ar ay tme the : " ) R A
finarcial pesion of the Group and Comaoany ang anpointment inaccordance with secion 485 of the
nandcia ocno STOUD anag Lomaany and :
: Comrpanies Act 2006
crable thiem o ernsure that the finanaial statermenis P e

comply wiih the Companes Act 2006

The airecrors are respoms‘&:le ‘or the mainenance

and rtegrity of the Company's webste Legsation
n the Lrited Kingdom governing tne preparation

and dissem nation of financia! statements may differ ¢
frar teg.station n otrer unsdictions
i PSlatham
i Director
;16 December 2022
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinion
We have audited the firancial statements of Fern
Trading Lirrited Uthe Parent Company’) and its

subsicharias (the 'Group') for tre year enaed 30
Jure 2022 which corrprise the Group Staternent of
Comrprenensive income, the Group ard Parent
Corrpany Balance Sheet, the Group Statement of
Cach Flows, tne Graup ard Parent Stetement of
Changes in Equity ard the reated notes 1to 29,
including a surmary of sgnifican: accountng

po.cies. Tne fAinancia: reporting framewark that has

been applied in thar creparation is applcabie aw
and United Kingdorm Accountirg Stancards
ircludirg FRS 102 "The Financ al Reporting

Standarc zpnticanle 0 the LK and Regublic of
d" iUniteg Kingdom Gererally Accepted

Accourting Pracucel,

Prot
irelan

In our oginion, the Srancial statements

» give a true ard fair view of tne Groug s and of the

el

arert Company’s affairs as ar 30 June 2022 and
of the Group's proft ‘or tha year then ended,

» have beern prooery orepared N accordance with

United Xingdom Cenerally Accepiec Accouriing

Practce, and

» have been prepared in accordance wita the
recuirerments of the Companes Act 2006.
Basis for opinion
We conducted cur audit in accordance wih
Internatona. Standards on Auditing {CK) GSAs (UK)
and applicable law. Our responsibilies Lnder those
stancards are furthier described o the Auditor's
responsibtlities for the audit of the financial
staternents section of our report. We are
irdependent of the Group n accarcance with the
ethical requirements that are relevart 1o our audit of
the financiai staternants in the UK, includirg the
FRC's
cther etnical respon

thege

Etuca! Standard, and we have fulfilled cur
sibilities In accordance with
reguirements.

We bel eve that the audit evidence we nav

('[J

cotasned is sufficient and appropriae to proe
basis for our oorcn.

Conclusions relating o going concern
n auditing tne firancial statement,

corcluded that the directors’ use Of the gaing

c

concerm Dasis © account:ng in tre sreparaticr of
he firancial siaternents is appropriate
3azed on e wok we have performed, we have

rties r2latng to

fAed any material urcers

ts or cord.tons that, .rﬁdiv:cuat:y or collectively,

may cast significart douht on the Group and Parent
Comoany's ability o contrue as a gong concem
velve montns frorm when the

‘or a perod of &
i = are a

uthorised for izsue.

QOur responshilisies and the responsbiites of

The Zireciors witn respect o going corcern
of

are described i tne relevant sectors of this
report However, bacause not ail future everis or

conditons can be predicted, trig statement is not
artee as to the

concem

quara an ity io continue as a

goir

Jf.JUD )

tﬁ

Other information

The other information comprises the 1o
inctuded in the anrual regort, otaer than the
francial statements and oJr auditor's report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the othar
inforrration contaned within the arrual report
Cur opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the otner mformation and, except 1o the
extent otherwise explicitly stated ir this report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion
therzon.

Cwr responsibility is ta read the other informatior
and. N do'ng so, consicer wnether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the

anancial statemerts or our knowledge obtained in




i
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of the audit or otrerwize appears to be

materially risstated I we identify surch roaterial
Inconsistercies or anparent matenal misstaternents,
we are recuired to determine whethar this gives rnse
to a material misstaterment in the finarcal

statem
rave perforrmed, we conclude that there s &

nents thermselves, If, cased on the work we

rmaterial misstatement of t-e other information, we

are reguired to report that fact

We have nothing to reportin irus regard.

Cpinions on other matiers preseribed
by the Companies Act 2006

In our open, based on the work undertzken in

the course of tne audit

ver in the Strategic report and

the Direciors vepor' for the Anancial year for
al statements are prepared s
coensistent with the financial statemerts, and

e the Strategic roport and Directors’ report have
Ceen preparcd N accoroande with applicab.e
2gal recaur@mentis

Matters on which we are require

report by excaplion

i‘;
el
4

In the vgnt of the knowledge and undersiancing of
the Group and the Parent Comoany and 1t3

eny ronment ohitained in the cours? of the audit,
we have nolidentfied materia. missiatements 'n

the Strategic repGrt or Dectors report.

We rave nothing o repcrl in respect of tha
follovaing matters in relat-c~ toowhich the
Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,

I < )DH’I o

« adequate accounting records have not o
or returns adeguate for our audit have no

recewed from bran~cres ~ot vised by us; or
+ the Parernt Company financial statements are not

ragresment win the accounting records and

o certain disclosares of Directors’ remunerasion

specified by 13w are not made, ar

» we have rotreceived al the information and

explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors
e Direciors

Ut o paces 29 and
are respornisibie ‘or the pregarat ¢

As explained micre futly in te
responzitiites statement et ©
30 the Drectors
of the financial sietemerts and for be ng satished
that they give a true and far view, ard far such
nternal contret

[al=tala)

as the Drectors dotenmineg 1s

szary 10 enaole tne preparation of hinarcal

It

staternents tnat are free from ma

misstatemert. whether due 1o fraud or error

in prenaring trie Ainanaial statemerts, the Directors
ard the

2 resnonsble for assesang the Group's
Parent Compary's avilty 1G continug as a going
corcern, cisCiosird, as apolcable, metters relzted
Lo geng concern and Jsing the going concerr
sass of account~g uniess the Directors e ther
tha Grou

Corngany or to cease operat.ons, of have no

ntend to liquidae D or tne Parent

raal stic alternative but o do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audil
of the financisl statements

Qur chyectives are 1o obtain reasonable
about whether the finarc al st

aTsurance
ternents as a whole
t, whether cue
o issue ar auditor's report

d

are free from mratenzl missialemer
(o fraud or erron, ang
that includes our oninicn. Reasonacle assurance is
ahigh eve o
an gudit conaucted o accordance wih 15As (LK)
wall atways detzct a matena, rmisstaement wher it
exists, whsitalements Can anie ro raud or enror
and are considerea mateal |, iImdiviauaily or in the
aggregste, they could reasonabily be expected o

nfluence the econacmic gec sions of users taken or

e ,
statermrents

the nasis of thes

il

andcia.

f assurance, but s 00 & guarantes That
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as to what exient the : + obtainng ar understanaing of policies and
audit was considered capabls of procedures in place regarding compiance
detscting irregularities, including
fraud

with lawe ard regulations, nciuding now

compliance with U™ POUCIES 13 MONIIGres
ard erforced. obtaning an urderstanding of

Irregularities, incluaing fraud, are instances of ~on-

| W : agement's process for denttying an
complanze with laws ard reguilations. We dazign ; manageme precess for dentiying and
o 231 ¥ frausd risks C'-(j.r;ﬁr‘r‘ rarmis
procedares ir ine with cur responsiblities, outhned esponding o fraud risks inclu “jrfg am
: ard contras established o address risks

ahove, 10 getect rregu.arities, includirg fraud Tre :

\ , . : ad, or otherwise nravert, aeter and
rsk of nct detecting 2 material missiater-ent due i : dertified, or otherwise prevert, ceter an

‘ e o i ct nd how senior managermeart
fraud 15 gher than e rsk of not aetecting one : detect fraud, and how anag

moniters tNoss progrars and cortrots;

resuiting from erar, as fraud may 1Imvalve delinerate

comcealmien: b-y, for exarnp.e forger\ o ntenucnal o revigw Of Coarg rmeeting minuies n the penoo
rassrepresentanchs, or through collason The : ard ap to date of s.gring,
extent 1o wh.Ccr OJr Crocedures are capacie of : .
! s We zscessed the suscept bility of the Grou
cetectrg rreguant 25, incluging fawdg < detaled :

‘ . : firancia. staternerts to mater ai misstatemery,
below However, the privary responsibility for e : ) ) .

: : inclad rg how fraud might occur oy hodng a

prevert en and detection of fraua rests with both : . ‘ )
. - : discuzson within the audit tearm whicn irciuded
trose charged with goverrarce of the ertty and :
rmanageTent : « dentifcaton of reated part s,
Cur acproach was as follows : « urderstanding the Group's busness, the

e ‘ cantrel em:ronmemtard aszessing the innerent
« We cotained an urderstandrg of the lega and )
r sk for relevant asserticrs at the sigrifcant

reaulatory ‘ramewgcrks trat are applicable 10 the

. sunt level including discussions wath
cup and determinad that the most sigrincant ot ‘ de
) _ maragerent to gain an understanding of
are trose that relate (o reporting framework (FRS d 3 , ~n9
- . Co those areas of the finarcal statements which
102 zna the Companies Act 2006] . i S
were susceptible o fraud, as «dentfied by
o We understood how Fern Trading Limnited s rmanagernent, and
complying with tncse frameworks by making ) ) .
« considerad the conirols that the Group has

estaplished to address risks «dennfed by
the entity ar that otherwisa see< o prevent,
deter or dewect fraud including garing an

enquiries of manageTent, trose charged wit

goverrance ard those responsiole for legal
and compliance grocedures as to any fraud nsk

framewaorcwithin the entity, incuding whetaer

‘ ‘ understanding of the entity tevel controls and
a formal fraud nisx assessmert is complieed We

‘ nclicies that the Groug applies
corrchorated our enquinies through review of the

» Based on ts understanding we designed our
audit procedures to dentiy non-compliance
with such laws and regulations Our procedures
involved testing of journal entries through

followng documentation or cerfzrmance of the
followirg proceduras

« cbtaining ar undersiandirg of entxty—te\/@i
conirols and considerng the influence of the

control environment journal analytcs tools, with focus en manual
ontrol environment;

1! Balen
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals ! to the company’s members those matters we are i

regulations that could affect the financial
staterments; and inspecting correspondence,
if any. with the reflevant licensing or regulatory

authorities. E"’W@S &%‘/\ L L P

meeting our defined risk criteria based on our i required to state to them in an auditor's report and

understanding of the business, tested accounting for no other purpose. To the fullest extent

estimates for evidence of management bias; permitted by law. we do not accept or assume

enquiring of members of senior management responsibility to anyone other than the company

and those charged with governance regarding : and the company's members as a body, for our

their knowledge of any non-compliance audit waork, for this report, or for the opiricns we

or potential non-compliance with laws and have formed. j
|

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council’'s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report,

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Frnst & Young LLP, Statutory
i Auditor

e mE o pegaee s . Belfast

This report is made solely to the Company's 20 December 2022

mermbers, as a bady, In accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

!
!
3
i
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Group profit and loss account for the vear ended 38 June 2022

(restated)
2022 2021
- Mot £'0060 ) £000
T:r;cv:r‘m A e T, R RS b T AT e e et 5 e 2 T 1 711,830 SR PERETE -
{410,883) (221,277}
Grossprofit ) 300947 204025
Adrmirusirative expensas (258 251} {231.844)
Operating profit/{ioss) o 82696 (27319
Otner income 1 3,550 9454
[rcome from other axed assat nyvastants 5,249 449
Share of operatng profit ingemt venire - 1,755
Profat o disposal of subsicianes ang joint veriure 8 29,533 28,568
Other rierest recevabic and simlar noome s 130 997
Ime’e)l pay; e and _>|rruaf changes 4] {33,554) (36,067)
Profit/lloss) before taxation . a7e04 (22663
Tax on pr(ﬂ*/ iloss) 7 (16 294) (8 349)
it/{loss rtherr'rnanmalyear S S 31.310Mm T (51 012' 7
Attributable to Fern 37,932 {27.005)
Minority interest (6 622) (4,007
' - 31310 31012

All resilts relate D contnuing acty ties, hote 26 detans

‘he pricr penot adjastments

Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

(restated)
2022 2021
r— o, e E'ooo F OOO SRRt
Profit/loss) for the financialyear T n310 51012
Other comprehensive income B 7 - .
Movements in cash flow nadges 77,985 44983
Foreign exchamoe galw’ﬂoss\ o retransation of subsichares 18 561 (333)
Other comprehenyyeﬁmcome for the year S , 96 546 44 6 0
'}m;;;“[:;rl{i:rehensnve income for the year T 127 856 I 13,658
Attributable to
+ Owners of the parent 134,478 17,645
+ Non-controlling mtere {6,622) _40on
o i . i 1.27.852mww ) 13 638 .
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Uroup belance sheet as a1 30 June 2042 )
{restated) :

2022 2021

hote £000 £000 :

Fixed assets !

o

Ntangible gssets 557,708 576739
Tangiole ascets S 1,893,430 1,581,682

12 35,452 11.000

Investrments
2,486,590

Siecks 12 184,479 94,711 <

Debtaors linc.udhng FI38mM 2021 £15.°m) 13 623,161 598,002
ciue aftar miore tharn one yoar]

Cash at nark and n nand 11 256,415

172,478

865191
| 202,059)

663132
2832553
Creditors: amounts falling due after more thanoneyear s W (992,425] ) ) ' <903339) ‘ |

Provisions for liabilities 17 (82,620) (41,372}
Net assets 2,219,448 1,887842 I

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14

Capital and reserves
Caled up share capiial 18 161,662 143676 |
Share prermidr account 364,882 173118 i
MGrGRT resoive 1,635,569 1.440,257
Cas fiow heage reserve 63,006 {14.979)
(2,770) 136,049

broft and loss account

Total shareholders’ funds 2,222,349 1884121 i

Non-cotrol (2,901 3721 :

Capital employed 2,219,448 1,887.842 !

Note 26 detzis tne prior period adiustments

Tnese consoldated financ.al stererments o cages 55 1o 92 were aprroved by the 3oard of arrectors on :

15 Secember 2022 206 are digned on therr sehalf by )
|

PS Latham
Cirector
Registered number 12601636
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Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
MNote £000 £000

B S 2] N ek e P AL DD

Fixed assets
investments 10 2,539,978

2,539,978 2116,266

Current assets
Debtars 13 39,888 50,383
Cash st bonl ard o hard 11 6,422 1,523

Net current assets 45,861 28982

Total assets less current liabilities 2,585,839

Net assets 2,585,839 2,145 348

2,116,366

46,310 51,906

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14 (449) (72.924]

2,145,348

Capital and reserves

m

Callec Lp share canta. 161,662 149.676
Share premiurm acoount 364,882 173,118
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1,791,145
72,838 31409
2585838 2145348

Profrard ioss accoun:

Total shareholders’ funds

Trhe Company has e.ected to take the exemptior wnder section 408 of tne Companies Act 2006 not 1o
present the Compary proft and oss account The oro™ for the Ainanciat period aealt w th i the financ al

lale ki

staterments of the Company was £236,742 000 (2021 1oss of £157,504,000)

Thece fingncial saternents on pagas 35 to 92 were aoproved oy the Board of directors on 16 Decernber 2022
and zre signed on therr behad by

PS Latham
Cirector

Reqistered rumber 12601636
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Group statement of changes In equity for the year ended 30 June 2022

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital .

share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed !

capital account reserve account holders’ interest [restated) :

(restated)  {restated) funds :

{restated) ,

E'DO0 £'000 E'000 £'000 E'0DOD £000 E'DDO E£000 :

Harvie as atLluly 4 - 5 2 (41085 & 5 !

2920 [as o 138435 - 1,635,509 1632.837) (41185 1668982 4570 1,678,552 :

Trerpenod - - - 3875 12,828 17703 - 17,703 !

ad,. Suments nute 260 :

138435 - 1635563 {59.967) (27.356) 1686685 9570 1,696,255 ]

|

- - - - 127.005; {27.005; 4.007) {31,012} ‘

- - 44,383 - 44,983 - 449863

i

- - - (333 (333) - 1323 i

- - - 44 G875 (333 44,650 - 44,650

- - . - - . " o PR !

- - 44582 (27,328} 17645 (4007} 13,638

{

a5t aneng or - - - - 1841 1831 (L1842} i ‘

o armbymahon ‘E

tJ:‘IL:J@' nof rmercer _ _ 1195.312) . 195 312 _ _ . E

o 32d dunng 11685 173112 - - - 184803 - 134303 |

G § R et e e+ o e e e e e e e \ .1

Juir g the v ad; - - B (€.529; 16.843) i

143676 173..18 1,440,257 (14,579} 136,045 1884121 272 1887842 :

Balance as at |

1 July 2021 {restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979) 136,049 1884,121 3721 1,887,842 J

Profit for the !

financial year - - - - 37,932 37.932 (6,622} 31,310 !

Changes in market 3

value of cash flow - - - 77.985 - 77,985 - 77,985 i

hedges

Fareign exchange

loss on retransilation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561
of subsidiaries
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Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 E£'000 E'000 E'000 E'000
Other
comprehensive - - - 77.985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/(expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/(expense) for - - - 77.985 56,493 134,478 {6,622) 127,856
the year
Utitisation of merger _ _ 195,312 _ (195,512) _ _ _
reserve
Shares issued during 11,986 191764 - - -~ 203750 - 203750
the year
Balance as at
30 June 2022 i 161,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 {2,770) 2,222.349 (2,901) 2,219,448
MNote 26 details the prior per od adjusimentis
Company slatement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
£000 £000 E'000 E000
Balance at incorporation - - - -
Loss for the financiat year - - -~ 157,504 {157,504}
Utlisation of merger reserve - - 1195.312) 195 3 2 -
Total comprehensive incorme - - {185,312) 37 SOE 157,504
Shares issued during the year 30120 173128 19886457 - 2,309,695
Shares cancelled during the year 1444 - - (6 '4903 t6 84‘)
Batance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173,118 1,791,145 31 409 2,145 348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 (195 312) -
Total comprehensive income - - 195,312 41, 429 236,741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2,585,839




A
N

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30

J

022

Giroup statement of cash flows for the year endaed 30 June 2022

D i Y TR B g SRR STTM RN e s kL, T ERRC ERG R e T

Cash flows from operatmg activities

Profit/iloss) for the Brancial year attr.butab.c to ke Gwrers
Adjustments for:

Tax on probt/iloss

Interest recoivable ana similas ircome

Interest payacls snd orier Sirnidr charges

Proft on disposal of subsicianies and joint venture

INCome o jomt veniure

e from ied &

Drvostmerns

Armortisalior and moarrnen s of intang ble fxed a3
3

Cenrediation of tirdpbe fixed assets

Neon cash o staft costs

Movernants en dervatives ana foreign exchange

iNCrease i stark
{noereasel/decraase rdebiors
increase/(dedreazoe] i creditors

Non-uontrolng interests

Net cash generated from operatlng actwmes

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchiase of subsiciary undertaangs (ret of cask acqureds
sale of subsidiary undertakings and j2int ventire

Burchase of rfangibio aswes

bie

Purchase of Intarg assets
Purchase of unl stea nvestiments
sae of unlsted imvestrients
rrerest received

FHCO'YJEE f.’O-’H VOM'F?, "V’E"FJTLJ.'(.‘

Cash flows from ﬂnancnng activities

Procecas from Anarcing

Interest pad

Repayments of Fnanorg

Procecds ftom shiare ssue

( ar«,cllal oyl of mare”

Net cash generated from ﬁnancmg actw:tnes

Net (decrease)lmcrease in cash and cash equwalents

Cash ard cast equnvalerts at tne beuinning of the year

of the parent

Maote 2022

£000

[ETST TSN

F><f‘h<:4 ne Gans or cash ari CHSY enulyalents

Cash and cash equwaients at the end of the year

Rk st T BER HE m ET

{restated)
2021

Dk b

37,932 (27005
16,294 £.345
6 (130) (957}
5 33,554 36068
8 (29,532) (28 568)

- (1755

{5.249) (449}

8 45,762 37704

3 101,802 84,657

3,040 8,875

(18,044) (19,788

{19,829) (5,701

31,022 249,574

{173,956) 6,871

y (6,622) (4.007)
25,853 (1751
41,897 341917

(52,377) (221,987)

101,778 24503

(322,446) (110,457}

{7,222) (8751

(124,203} (25.617)

19 105,000 26133

3 130 957

- 1077
98,3400 (305226

201,719 -

(32,519) (35.552)

(32,013) (212,676

13 203,750 184,359
18 - (6,399)
O aaw (70,268}
83694 (34.577)

1 172,478 206688
a3 s67

0 256,818 172478

£ OOO -

Note 26 detalis the pricr perniod adiustments
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Company information

rern Trading Limited (the Company’) is a private company irited by shares and neorporaec on 14 b
20 .:.F The company 15 domicited n England, tre United <ngdom and registered under company nur ‘Oe
12601636, Tre adaress of the registered office is at 6in Foor, 33 Balborm, London, Zngland, ECIN ZHT

Sratement of compliance

Tre Croup ard mdaedual fnancial staterenis of “ern “raging Lirites have teer prepared 10 comoliance
with Un ted Kingdom Accounting Stancards, mcudir:g Financial Reparting Standard 107, The Firancia
Reporting Standard apg 1cable in the Urited Kingdom and the Repubhc of Ireiarnd (FR5 1027 and tre
Comrparies Act 2006

Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared " & gong Concern basis, under the nsior cal cost convent.on,
as rod fied oy the recogrton of certain fnancial assers ang l'smiives measured at fa - value, and in

accordance with the Companies Act 2008 and aoppuracle accountng standards in the United ingdom ~he
prnc:oa. aotcunting pol cies, which nave been acpied conasie-tly throughout the year, are set out below

re consclidaten francal stater~enis irclude the results of all subsiciares owned by Ferr Trading Limied
s hsted nonote 29 of tne annwal frnanas al statemenrts Certain comparies of these supsigiares, whcr are

o

taken the sxernpticn from an audit ‘o1 the year ended 30 June 2022 cermitied by

sted in noe 29, hay

secton 47934 oF Compan es Act 2006 In oraer 1o allow tnase subsidianes wo ta<e the audit exemption, the
parent cormpany 1as given a statutory guaranies, in ine witr section 479C of Companies Act 20060, of all
tre outstandng rnet lat lines as a: 30 June 2022

Going concern

Tne Group's and the Company's ousness activities, together w ik the factors likely @ afect its future
developrnent, cerformance and posizon are set out the Strategic Repaort on pages 4 1o 14, Tre finanaial
cos.ton of *he Group, its cash fiows, hguidity positon and corrowing faclines are descrnibed 1 the firancial
review On pages 23 o 27 The pancipal nsks of the Grous are set out on pages 16 ¢ 19,

Tne Directars perform an annual gomg concern review that corsigers the Group's abiity 1o meet its
firancial obligations as they fal. due, for a period of at least twelve months after the date that the financial
siatements have been sic ”ec‘

sment to getermine
ubt on the apility of the
nd as a conseguence, the

Due o the challengirng market conditions management nave performed an 2sses
whether there are any mawena: uncertainties arising that couid cast sign-hcant do
Grouo o contnue as a going cancern, No significant -ssues nave been noted an
directors believe that the Group 2 well placec 1c manage its bugness rsks success.‘ulty despite the current
JACErtain eConomic outicok.

Iiisiie e
33@;;1« 5
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In reacning this ©

clusion the Direcions rave reviewed the fina~csl imoact of the uncertanty on tne
Group's batance sheel, profit ane loss and cash flows w,ii spedfic consideration gven 1o e following:

A reverse stress test was performed o tha base case forecast (o ascertain wnat scenancs would result i
rizks o the Grouons liguidity positor. The test showed even in ar unbkely scenaro of a sigrificant reduction
of reven_e of 46%, the Grouo is able 1o tustain its currert operational costs and meet all HaoilTes as they fall

due for atieast g ymr from the date of sigring these fFnancial staternerts wher utilis ng the svaiatle

4

fac.ities within f Gro.p.

The Grous has a nurber of financing faclites that contan covenants regainng the Group 10 maetamn
specified dnancal ralios and compy with ceran other an
tested at tea

cal covenants These financa, covenamis are

B

st quarterly. and, at the date of ths report, the Grogp SN compance with alots financial

covenants Sre

sets on reazonanly plaus.bio scenar Gs sLoh as a s.gn Fcant reducion in EBITDA of 84%
Sver time have been used o astess the covenant requiremants [or the at least tne next twe've monik

anc
51l covenants Pave been forecast 1o be miet even ander the stress tast scenario. nihe 20 1g cencerr pencd.
IC Jur
:t?vot.vmg credit facilivy of £E210r

2022, the Group nad avalable cash of £256m and headroor: evarat ¢ of 2447 incl.ding &

- Debt of £&8m i@ due o mature in i2ss thar are year, wit™ the rerma nacr

of L9567 payasia in more taan one yoar, Tne Groups fackities, repayment dates ard urdrawr amaounts are

-~

set out in Nowe 16 Lears ard Borrow ngs

Key acenurding udgement ang estimares have peer mace with consideraton given to tne currert
economic outicok. Key estimates include loan recovera lity, valuaton of workon progress,

decormrruss oing provisions, impaicmert of yoodw I and mvesimeris, business combinations ano hecge
acccurtng Details are szt out o pages 50 to 51

Basen o the above assossmert of curren econarn ¢ conditions ard the irrpact o the SGroup's firanais!

pozitor, ligudity anc ﬁnamoa\ covenants, the direc

s bave concludec that the Groun ara Cornpany has

adequate resources to conunue N opeatiorai existence for the rnext 12 monibs Thus, trey continue 1o

adopt the going concern basis of accounurg in orepanng the ennual firanc al state~ents.

»

fuemptions for nualifying entities under FRES 1

FRS 1C2 allows a cualifyng ertity certain disclosure exemotors, sulbject o carfam conaitons, wiich nave

beer comphea with, includ. g notificat-on of, and <o chjection o, the use of exermptions by the Company’s
snarenolders

The Cerrpany taken advarizage of the faliowing exemphens

v frorn prepanng a statement of cash flows, on the pasis that it iz a quaiiyng envty and the consalaated

staternent of cash flows, inc.uced in these fnancial staterients, sncluced the Campany's cash flows,

I instrument disclosuras, reguired unces FRS 102 paragrachs 11 39 to 12 48A ang
Lt 17 29, as the irfor-natnon s provided in the conso Zated firarcial staemart

i from disclosing tne Comeany key maragement persornet compersation, as reau red by FR5 102
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Basiz of consolidation

The consoldates Gnancal statements irciuee the rasults of Fern Tradirg Limited and all its subsiciary

Lhdertasings mace us to the same accourtng date Al intra-group balances, transactions, income arnd
xpenses are eliminawed in full on consohdaton. The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired o disposed

of suning the penod are ncludec or excluded from the income statement from tne etfective cate of

acgulsition or d:.sposal.

All undertakings over which the Group exercises confol, being the power to goaverr, ine finarcial and
operating policies s6 as to obtan benalts from their actvities, are consclidates as subsidary undertakings
Wrere a subsidiary has gifferent account ng policies 1o tne Group, adjustments are made 16 1Nose
subsiciary francial staternerts to apnly the Groun's accounting polic €5 when preparing the consoldatec

franca statements.

Any subsidiary anderakings or associates sold ar ac q uired during the year are inciuded up to, or frome, the
fi I

ﬁ
9]
-3
W
3
o
i
]

B
v
W}
s}
A
o

e

lue~ce respectively,

dawes of crange of controt o pec

Where the Grolp has written a put oplion over shares held by a non-comrolling interest, the Groug

derecognises the non-cortoling interest and instead recognised contingent aeferred considerat
within otner payables for the estimated amount likely to be paig 1o trhe non-controllng nterest on exercisc

of trose conons Tne res dual amau-t, represertng tne difference betweer any consicleraton pa.d/payauie

and tne non-contralling -rterest's share of net assets 15 recognised as goodwill Movementsn the

=50 mated aabiity after inidial recognimor are recogrized as gocowill,

Foreign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Geoup financal staterments are presented in pound steriing and rourded to thousands.

be Company's funchional andg presentaicn currency s pound sterling and rounded 1o thousands.

ii. Transactions and balances
Foreigr currency ransactions are translated into the fu~ctional carrency using the spot e‘xchanoe rawes at
the dates of the transacticns, Al each periog end ‘o re\jn currency manetary items are transiated Jsing tha
ang rate Non-monetary iterns measured at hisiorical cost are translated using the exchenge rate at the
date ¢f the transaction and non-monatary items Weasured at fair value are measured using the exchange
rate wher: farr value was determined. “oreign exchange gairs and losses resulting from the setilemert of
transactions ang from the transiaton at pencd-end exchange rates of monetary assets and babiinies
denominates in foreigr currencies are reccanised in the oroft ana (css account

Al forergn exchange cains and osses are presented in the proft and o35 account within administrative
expenses’

ifi. Translation
Tne trading resuits of Group undertakings are translated into pounds stering at the average exchange rales

for the year The assets and Labrities of overseas undertakings, includirg goodwil and fair value adjustments

arisng on acouisition, are trans.ated at the exchange rates ruling at the year-end Exchange adjustments
arising rom the retranslation of opering net rvestments and from the translation of the orofits or losses
at average rales are recognised in 'Other comprehensive incomre’ and alocated to non-controling interest
a5 appropriate

ey
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Turnovey
The Group operates a number F classes of business Revenue s derivad by the following:

- Energy

Turnover from the sale of electricity gererated by solar farms, winc generat Ng 353813, resarve nowar
i e

=

—
jin)
3

olants ard omrass and landfll sites is recogmised on an accruals basis

o
generated Revenue from long-terT government tacked ciftake agreements, such as the Renewable
Ooligation Certification (ROCT scheme are acorued in the genod inwnich it reates o, Turnover from the

3
sale of fertiiser by biomass and landfll businesses s recagrised on chysical dispaten

» Healthcars
the s gn'ficant risks ard rewards of ownerskip of retiremert properties have

Turnoves s recognised when

tiory, e amount of rever e can ne recagnized reliably, and itis

Q0 cconcmic benefits ascoc.aied witn tne tranzacton will flow to the entity Turncver
¢ recogrised al the far value of ire corsderation receved “or healthcare serv-ces provided it the normal
course of busicess, and is shown net o° VAT Turnover 15 recogrused based on thc date the service is

nrovidad

 Lending
Turnover recreserts arrangerment fees and irterest on loans provided to customers, net of any value
added tax {oan interest s recognized ¢ an accrual basis in lire with conractual werms of the loan

agrecment Arrangement fees are spread over the life of the 1oan to which they relate

= Fibre

Turnaover 's recogrised at the far value of the corsderaticn rec

S
IT services prov ded in the normal course o busingss, anc s showr net of VAT Turmover 1s recogn ced

oased on the d the se-vice < provided.

= House pulding

qpletion of the szle of property lanc and commercial spaces. Turnover

8

Turnover s recognsed on lag

from housing associaticn contracts s recognised by eference (o the value of work compicted as a

Employes benefits

Y

£

S
The Group provides a range of bensfits to employees including arnaal bonus arrangements. pad holc
f g 4
arrangemeris and defined contrbution pension plars

i. Short-term benefits
Shiort- terrm Denefits including heliday pay and other amilar noe monreary benefits, are recogn-sed as an

expense in the penoc im which tre service s received.

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

A defined contrbution plan is a pensicn plan under wnich the Group pays fixed cortriputons into a

separate entity Once the contnputions have been pad tne Sroup naz ro furtner nayrrent obligations

The contribut.ons are recogrisaed as an exgense when they are due, Armounts not paid are showr in
.

e palance sheet The assets of the plan are beld separately from the Group inindependarntly
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iii. Share~-based payments

Cash-setiled share-based paymerts are measured ar far value at the oalance sheet date. Tne Groug
recognises a liabidty gt the balance sheet date based cn these fair values, tsking into account the estmated
number of units that will actually vest and the curen: proporucr. of tne vestng ceriod

Cranges 1N the value ¢f this liab lity are recogmised in the income statement
The Greup nas no equity-settled arrangements.

Finanze costs

Finarce costs are chargad to the profit and loss account over the term of the debt Lang the effective
Interest methos so tnat tne amount charges s at & constant rate o tre carying amaunt issug costs are
initaly recogrised e fthe associated canital nstrument ang réleased to the

3
as a reductior in thie proceeds ©
proft and (oss account over the

Current and deferred tax

Tax 1€ recognised in the staterrent of income and retained eanings, except that a charge atmouiable o an

rerm of incore and expense recogrised as other corr‘prel*"ens:ve ncome or to an e recogrised directly

I equity 15 alto recognised i other comprenensive income or directly in eq.uity respecuvely.

Tne carrent income tax charge 13 caculated on tha bazis of ax rates ard laws that have been enacted or

subsiantwvely eracted oy the halance sheet date in the countries whiere the Company operales and

gererates ncome

Deferred alarces are recogniced in rezpect of al iming differerces trat have originated but mot reversed

by the Balance theet date, except that

« Trne recogn tion of deferred tax assets 15 amted to tne extent that © 1z probaole that trey wil be recovearea
aga nst the reversal of defarred tax laoitines or cther future taxable profts and

« Any deferred tax ba:ances are reversed If and wren ali corditions for retain ng assccisied tax allowanceas
nave teen met

Ceferred ax balances are not recognised in respect of permanert differences except in respect of business

combinations, wher deferred tax is recognised on tre differences between the fair values of assets acguirea
and :he ‘uture @x deductions available for them and the differences between the far values of iab-lties

acquired and the amount that will pe assessed for tax Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates and
that have been sracted or substantively enacted by the balance sreet date.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accodnted for by aopiying the purchase rethoa,

Trhe cost of 2 business combination is the fair vaiue of the consideraticn given, liabilities incurred ©
assuried and the equity Instruments issued plus the costs directly attributable to the businass combimnation.
Where control ¢ achieved 1n stages the cost s the consideration at the date of each transaction.

On acguisition of a business, fair vawes are attributed to the identifiacle assets, liabitites and contingert
liabilities urnless the farr value cannot be measured retiably, in which case the value s incorparated as
goodwill. Where the fair value of contingent Labiities cannot be reliably reasured they are disclosed
or the same pasis as othar contingent liabilties

Setepat

L swn gy
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Coodwil. recognised represents the excess of the fair value and cirectly atrioutable costs of the surchase
consideration over the fair values to the Groap's interest in the identufiatyes net aszets, labilives and
contingert habilties acgured

On acquisition, goodwil is alocsted to cash-genearat:ng units [COL s that are expected © hanefit from
the cormrbimaton.

Goodwilt 1s amortised over its expacied useful life whicn is determmined oased or the estimated Ufespan of
trie assats acgured. Where the Group s urakle to maxe a reliable esumate of useful life, goodwill s
amortised over a period rot exceeang ten years Goodwill 1s reviewed and assessed forimea rrent
nadicators on an annual basis and any imparrent 1s charged to the profit and woes

Tangibie Axad sssats

Tanginle fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation Depreciaton s prov-ded at rates calculated to weite
off the cor of fixed assets, less their estimarted resigual value, over therr expecied useful lves Depreciation
commences from: e date an atset s brought into servee Land and 4s:cis n tk-e courae of construchc:

ars not degreciared. The estrnaied useful lives are as follows

Ldno amo Do Lmrwg 2%, tr 4 siral qrr Ine
2% Tf\ b/c. SUAIG

4% o L% straight bne

e} o°/- straight In

urse of construction are stated at cost. These assets are not ceprec ated unt| they are

i as techhoicg\'ca. acvancement or cnanges in market grice, ind:czte that residual vawe

o useful ife have cranged, the residual valde, useful Ufe Or ceprecationr rar

are amenced Qrospeczweay w0
reflect the new crrcumstarices, The assets are reviewed for irmparment i the above factors ndicate tnat the
CarryIng amoJdnt may be impared

CL

Ganic anc osses or d'sposais are getermired by comparng the grocesds with the carrying amoJnt and are

recogm'sed withnn profit or loss.

Intanyibie assels

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated am accuwmnulated impairmant iosses.
Amortizaticn s calculated, using the straght ire metrod, to atocate the depreciable arecurl of the assets

to thetr res dua’ values over ther estirmated useful wves, as folows

Amcrusation expenses are included N acrinistrative expenseas,

Deveicoment rignts relate 1o planni=g consert 1o build a solar farm and a wind farm acquires on acau sitonr,




R h | | TATE RN N g TNl ¥a ks

4 § FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Statement of accounting policies

Where {actars, such as changes in marker price, indicate tha uai vaiie or useful I'fe nave cnanged, the
residual value, useful iife or amorticat on ~ate are arrended o ,ect\vely to reflect the new crcumstances.

The assets are reviewed for imparment I the ahove factors indicate that the carryirg amodnt may
be impaired.

Leases
Atinceotion the Group assesses agreements that trans®er the nght 1o uce assets. Tne assessment cons ders

whether the arrangenant is, or cotairs, & lcase Dasad on the saostance of the arrangement ard whether

ine lease shodld be classified as e ther 4 finarce lease or an operahng isase.

Leases of aszets that transfer subistantially 3l the rizks ard rewards inc dental to cwnersrip are Classified as
finarce leases, Finance .eases are capitalised at the commencerrent of the leace at the fairr value o the
nd depreciaed over 7he snacter of the ease term and the estirmatec useful fe of the aszet

T
o]
%)
[qv)
a3
)
wr
[23)
4]
Y}

Assets are aszeseed ‘or rparment at each report rg date.

Leases tnat do nat fra~sfe all tre rsks and rewards of ownership

Payments under operalmg leases are chargec o the profit and |
per.od of the lease

lnvestments

The Company holds invesiments in a subsidiary at cost less accumulated impairment losses. If an

iImpa rrent 10ss s subsequently reversad, the Carrying amoun: of the mvestme-t s increased to the revised
estumate of its recoveratle amount, bt oniy 10 the extent that the revised carrying armou~t doges not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determinea Fad ro :mpa\rmeﬂ* loss been recagrised N prior

perods Areversal of an mrparment loss is recognised in the proht ano loss account

{ash

Cashincluges cash in hand and denosits repavable on demand, Restncted cash represents cask for whicn
the Group does net have imrnediate ana direct access or for which reguiatory or legal requirements resirict

the use of the cash

Stocks

Raw matarals, spare parts and consamables are valuad at the lower of cost and net reatisable value, Where
necessary, 2 pravision is made for obso.ete. stow-moving and defective stock Costs determined on ine
first=in, first-out (FIFC; method

Fuel s:ocks (MSM and utter} are mtued o an d\mrage Cost basis over ore to two months and provision for

Fuel stock of straw nas been valued at t~e historical cost per tonne of straw. A prov-sion for unusable straw

is identified on an individual stack bas's and s reviewed monthiy. Stocks are used on a first in, first out
{("F.FO7) basis by age of straw
Stocks of ash at Fhrophos are valuad at the lower of cost and net reaiizadle value o the Group

Stocks of property aevelopment work in progress {"WIPY) are stated at tre lower of cost and net realisabie
value. Cost comprises direct materials ang, where applicatle, direct labour costs and those overneads that
have been incurred In bringing the stocks to theair present locatiens and conditon
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L each reporung date, an assessmert s made for imgarment, Any excess of the carrying armoun: of

YT

a
tocks over its estmaten selling price less costs fo cormpiete and sell is recogrisad as an imparment o
through the profit and loss account Reversas of rmparment losses are also recognised in the profit arwci

1Oss aCCount.

Aoorusd inoome

Accrued income on loars is calculated at the rate of interest set cut in e loan contracts Energy income is

acrraed over the percd in which it has been generated.

Deferred income

De‘erred ncomie s recogrused in acoordance with tre tarms set oLt in the contact, Oeferred ncome s

released to the profit and loss account ir the cenod to which = re

Fiprangcinl nsztrument

F
s chosen w0 adon Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 -1 resp

The Grouo r Instrurents

Financial gssets

Basic firanc sl assets, \rw:‘urjmg trade ard other receivasles and cash ang Dank balances are initially
anzed at trarsection prce, unleds the arangement Constitules a dnarcrg transacuon, where the
transactior 5 measureq at the oresen: value of tre future recaints discounted a2 market rate of inerast

<

M oassets are sut

guenily canes al amaorused cost using the elfect ve interest method

At the end of eacn repart ng penod fnancat assets meatured g amaorts

essec for ohjectve

vaence of irmparment If an aszet s impared the mpairmeant loss Betwecn the carryr g

amaunt ane ihe presest value of the estmated cash flows discounted al e ass Clve rteret

rate T hoernpairrant lass s rocognized in profior o

Onhier Ainanczl assets, mcluding investments in equity irstrurcents wh.ch are not subiidianes, ascociates o
joint ventares, are ntially reasured at fair value, whichis normally the tra~saction pnce Sucs assels are
suosequerdy caried at far valoe ard the cnanges in ‘ar vawe are recogsed in orofit or ioss, except tnat
nvestmeris neguity instrurents that are not publcly traded ard whose fair vaibes carnot e measured
reliably are measared at cost less impa’rment

Franc.al azsets are derecogrised when (a) the cortractual rignis 1o the casn fiows rom the asser expire or
are setted, or (bl subsantally al the «isks ard rewards of the owrership of the asset are transferred o
ancther party or (c} control of tne asset has been transferred 1o anather oarty who has tne practica. ability

se
rrelated third party witncul imoosicg aadinora, resinctons

o uniiateraly zell the

Financial {iabilitiss

Basic Franzial liabidites rowuding trade acd other payastes, cank ioans, lears frov fellow Group compan.es

and oreferencs smares, are ntiaty recogrised at ransazocn pric uniess the arrznge et consulutes a

finarcing ransactor, whoe the deblinsirument is measured at the present vatue of the future receiots
discourted at 3 market rate of nierest
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Dent instrurrents are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the efective nterest rate metnod. Fees
paid cn the esiablishment of loan facit es are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent ina
it e probabtle that some o all of the facility will be drawn down [n this case, the fee s deferred until the
draw-dowr occurs To the exient there s no eviderce that its pfobab%e that scme or all of the facility wilt
be drawn down, the fee s captalised as a pre-payment for L quidiny services and amortised over the pericd

of the facility to which it relates

Trade pavables are coligations w Qay for goods or services that have boen acguired in the ordinary course
of business fro"ﬁ= suppaers. Accounts payable are clascifier as current labidves if payment is dug withun one
year or @53, If ot they are presented as nan-curent liabilties, Trade cayables are recognised initially at

ransact.on price and subsequently measured at armortises cost using the effective nterest mathoa.
Fnancial isbilues are gerecagrisans when the tiabiity s extinguished, that 1s wher the contactuea: onligaton

15 dscharged, canceiled or expires.

Prov.ennc are mace whers ar evenrs nas taken place that gives tre Group a legal or constructive obligatior
‘hat probaoly requires settiemert by a transfer of econom ¢ beneht, and a reliacle estrrate can be mace of

at the Growp becomes
date of the expenditare

.

Provisions are Charged

AT}

s an expanse o ire profit and loss account in the year

aware of the obligation, ard ace measured at the pest ectimate at tr

regu(:- o settle the ubhgat or, taking imt ascount relevant rsks ar

Medying

The Group apphies heage accounting for tranzacions enteres into [0 mManage tre cash flow exposures of
borrowings. Interest rate swaps are held 1o manage e interest rate exposures and are designated as cas
fow Fedges of floaung rate bermowirgs. Changes n the fair values of derivetives des.gnated as cash flow
hedces and which are effective, arg recogrised airectly in equity, Any ineffectivenass :in the hedging
relationship tbamng the excess of the cumulative charge in fair value of the hedging .nsrument since
inception of the hedge over the curmuiative change in the fair valae of the hecged item since incepton ¢f
the kedge) is recognised in the proit and loss

Tre gain or loss recognised in other comprengnsive Income s reclassified o the profit and (ess in
accordance with tne cash flows of the hedges tem. Hedge accounting 't discortnued wher the hecging
instrurment expiras, Ne longer meets the hedging critena. the forecast transaction = 1o longer highty
probatle, tne hedgea debt instrurrent is derecognised or the hedaimg instrument is terminated

Share caphal
Ordinary shares issued by the Group are recognised 'n equity at the value of the proceeds received, with tne
excess aver nominal vaiue being credited 1o share premium

Mor-controfling interests

Non-controiling interests are meacured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifabie nef assets

at the date of acguisition
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Statement of accounting policies

Key acoounting §u§§~§§§33’§’§%§'§§‘$ ancd estimates

The preparatian of financial staternants in comphiance with FRS 102 reguires e use of certan crivcal

accocwLntnig estimates it a.s0 requires management (o exercise Ju-dge mentin applyirg the Company's
L2

zecounting oalicies Estimates ard jud gefrprts are conunually evaluated and are based on nistonical

thatl are belicved (G be reawonable

urder me crourmsiances The key estimiates aﬂc; cerrents in prepaning these financial stataents are.

experience ard other ‘aciors, Incl.ding expe ng of fulure avents

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate)
lL.oars and advances 1o custsmers, i

~tuding associated accrued ncome dalances, are reviawes for
mpairment or & quarterly Lag's, ‘0 consiger ng the need for a provision management determine theay best
estimate of the expectes future cash ﬂows On & case oy case basis, As this esumate relies on a certam
ruTher of assunrptiors about future events wheeh may differ from actfual outcomes, ncludirg tne
porrower's ability 1o cepay lerest and capital due in future penods, fris gves rise o judgemesnt as to

whether there 12 3 erortfal batween the carrying vawe and the fair value of (he debtor palance.
¥

Managoment note tnat provisions agaicrst Gans and advances 'S a cntice. esimate ang have therefore

nerforrmed sersitvity analysis or the provision The results of 1he senstivity analysis corclude frat a chango
of +/- ane per cent i tre amount prov ded againg: the estimated palarces at ns< would Nave resulted in
f3.em iess/more expenciiure Beirg chargad o the moome statement donrg the perod See note 13 for the
carrying amount of the dedtors and provisiors at 20 Jure 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress (WIP'} {estimate)
Property developrrent WIP s revicwed Tor impa rment on a periodhic basis In consider ng 1ae neea for 3
CrovISior, rmanagement ooterm o trigrr best estimate of the recoveraole value. Manggernent engage

expert exteral valuer 1o provde assumohiors about futare avents which nay differ from zaciual

cutcomes, ncluding propéerty valuat o s, rate of sales ang doveloprnent <o

These estimates g ve rise toudgernent as to whether trere s a shortfal petween the carrying value ard the
falr value of tne baiarce as at the 30 June 2922 Post year end, managament Nave raviewed the
assumpﬁona Jsed to determine the value < property development WP and have ohsarved ro changes in
performance trat would mpact the valuztion as at the 30 June 2022 See note 12 for the carryicg amoun:
of the property developrrent WP

ii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)

The Grous owns two erergy generating suosiciaras in Aust-aba which have entered inte purchase price
agreercerts (PPASH in 20159 arnd 2021 The PPAs include a cartract for dferences "CID" whereby tre
subsicianes cay/receive amounts from the custerrer pased on the differences between 3 fixed seling price
and the actuzl prce for eectr Oty soid 1o the Austraban erergy marke: The direcices beleve the contract s
outside the scope oF FRS 102 secton 12 as itis for the sale of a non-finarcal item and the Cf D s typical &
such arrangements Trerefore it s being accour

o
Of

.o for unger FRS 102 section 23 as a revenue cortract wath

varable considerabon, rather than revaluing tne endre cortract 1o farr vaue.

iv. Business combinations (estimate)

The cost of a busines cormpinaton is tne fr vali.e of the consdersion giver, lianihes
costs direcily aitnbutable to tne business combiratior Fair value of these combinatons |

gnid rmore detgds are prowded o pages 45 w0 46,
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Statement of accounting policies

v. Decommissioning provision {estimate)

Tne provision for decommission ng costs is measured at managemernt’s best estrate of the present value
of the expenaiture required to setile the future oblgation to return tand on which tnere are operauonal wind
and solar farms, 1o its ongimal conaition. Tae level of the provisions is determimed to a signifcant degrees Ly
tre estimation of future dsmanting and restoration costs as well as the timing of dismrantlemeant,

Wind Farms (estimate):
Mzrnagemeant ncte that decorrmissioning proviziors s a or weal ectimate and rave therefore pecformed

sensitvivy anaiysic, Tre resuits of the sensit'vity anatysis conclude tnal a change of +/- ane per cent in the

7

clecouns rae would nave resulied in £2 1m Increaze/decrease ir tne provision, See note 17 for the prov sior
recoansed at 30 June 2022 Managemen: utilise external expertise to provide an estimated cost to

cizmantie and Fave used a discounira (2% o reflect the dre in value of rroney and tre risks specific
o the obi';atior‘..

Australian sclar farms (judgement):

The Group 'z regaired o restore the legsed premises of the sc.ar farm 1o their ongral cordine at the erd
of the lease termr. A orovison was prévicusy recogrised, however in the current year this judgement hag
besn reassessed and maragerrent believe ithe iessor may wish 1o either take ttie of the assets for either
continued wze or o realise value through seling tne assets and 53 sJon do rot celieve that an cuth:ow 13
probacie to setlle tnis restorat.or obligation

UK Solar {estimate):
During the year, a third party performed an assessment. of the base cost of the decommissior ng of tne
Grouos JK solariarms. "he ﬁfldlr'gs have resulted in materizl changes i the cost estimate and there’ore a
The imgpact nas resulted in a provision zeng
fixed assets As at 30 June 2022 trere 13

orovisicn has been recngrised for the first tma on some sites
raised for L18m to tnhe baance sheet gecommisaicning Jability ard
NG imsact on the profit and loss Sites not affected are addressed below

UK and French Solar (judgment):

Mznagement believe that given tne nature of these particular aszetz, the leszor may wish to eitner take tile
of tre assets for either contnuad use or to realise value tarough eliing tne ascets and as such dao not
believe that an out®iow is probable 1 setle this restoration obligation Management will contue 1o moritor
the situation at each balance sheet dae.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments {estimate)

The value of goodwill held by the Greup and investrments in sutsidiary undertakings hele by tne Company
is reviewed annually for 'mparrment Tne recoverablity of these balances s considered with reference to the
present vaiue of the estimated future cash flows. These cawcuiations use cash flow projectiors wh'ch extend
forwarg forecast busress gerformance together with assumpt'ons surrcundirg the expected life of the
asset, extarnally prcpareci forecasts and valuations, and any agjustments required to the discount rate o take
zccourt of business rsk. The estimated present value of these future cash flows 13 sensitive to the discount
rate anc growth rate usec n the a\culat*om, all of which require management’s judgement. Testing of the
carrying value has been performed during the year, which nas involved several scenarios heing madelied.
Based or this testing and the resultng impairment recognisec on nvestments, management pelieves there
is sufficient neadroom to support the value of cocdwill and investrments in subsiaiary entties.

Management note that impairment of goodwill ard Investmenis 1s a crnitical estimate and have therefore
performed sensitivity analysis on the provision. The results of the sensitivity analysis conclude that a change
of +/- one per cent in the amount provided ageinst the estimated Balance at nsk would have resulted in
£5.45m less/miare expenditure neing charged to toe income staterment auring the pencd Sees note 8 for
the carrying amoLint of the goodwill and investmenrts at 20 June 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Analysis of turnover by category

RPN S rtmmermaer TN TIEERLAIM . e TeneR<imaemy fhenedes 0 TRanRsasEmpegen o F SRUsEErmezcss o000 ies Bosmsunana b TR R

Larumg a.;:l wtes 42,404
Fnergy oporalions - saiar, resarve power and wind 365,958
Cnergy aperations — kicimass and landal 223,526
Healthcare operatiors’ 45,978

ome oulding 25,034
Fiore operations 8,930

175,820
141,826
42,266
4,838
425302

Iclad

ard £282 6 2021 L33 1) e retalion 16 soraeces renaered.

Analysis of turnover by geography

2022

£'000

Lurepe 84,433
23,486
711,830

GFwearled

din ncome o bealthcae operations s D1/ 4m (2021 £17 2l relat ng o the sale of retirement village wrts,

2021

i'U'Q'Om
384759

21893
£e10
425,302

Other income

2022
£000

2021
£000

sTh

CAMAGES Ard INSUrANCa Procesds 3,550

9454
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
2 oonealen

Th's 15 stated after charging/(Crediting).

{restated)
2022 2021
£'000 £°000

N Ll TP I O I S e L T N e R R b bt e d T G FEDRREREE RNt B R e+ ko o 200 TN SR SR R RG R

Ammcrrisaton of intandg Mot §) 37,849 37704

Impairmen: o intargit'e assets (now 8) 7,913 -
Depreciaton of tangiole assets Incte 93 101,802 34,697

Auciters’ remunerancr — Lorepdny and the Groun’s consolidated

firancial slgte~enls

45 146

Auciters rernurernanor - audit o Company's subsidhianes 819 1134
Aldditcrs rermureraion - non audit sery nes 246 513
ALCItCrs remunerator — tax Cormpliance services 482 672

Lifference on foreon exchange 7,772 4,402
Cperating wase rentais 13,783 7502

Note 28 aeta’ls the pror pencd adjusiments

2022 2021
£'000 £000

R R G FRE TROME A% RS mmannh PRE ch gy % Y b S AR R BEER G by e o ma YT WO WX 0a B adhas phenng k1 0 VRSO SRR RN Ehad yuadintas S ITE TR0 50y

Wages anr salaize 85,432 41,383
sccial securty £os1s 7.041 3809
Other pension Cosis 3,233 1676

The Group provides a defined corribution schemes for its empioyees Ir the UK The amount recognised as
an expense for the aefined contribution scheme is shown in the fapie above,

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021
DT ——— i B P sagmpan Number
pl’Od“;CYIOﬂ ) R . R 1,032 699
Administration 631 348
3

1666 1050

Number

The Comnany had ones employee other than Directors dunng the period ended 30 June 2022 (20210 nonel.
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Erroiurne

2022
£000
176

ogd EREpptteaka o ET whaad ZUETHadad B TR RAR G ¥ b 0T AR an 0 S PaR L PRIt mas T M a1

During the year na senstan confributions were made in respec: of the arectors (2021 no

The Group has ho other key managerront (2021 nonel

Bomov oo T s e

A number of subsidianes of the Croun operatz a cash-settled LTIP to qualfying evrployees, whaereoy

errpiCyees render Services ir &

crangg for casn, the amount of which s cetermned by reference fo the

vawation of the unacerlying subsiaary The far value of the lability “or the awards made is measured 3t caon

reporting dae ard at e settlement d

of expernse recagnised takes

vest under the senvice and perforrT‘.amf;e corditions urderlying each award grantad.,

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

()l‘cm 10 Qufw,r“dlﬁ

Gram‘ﬂq qwrwq ‘hu penod

Closing outstanding balance

2022
Number of
awards

1,914,751
1,763,563

3678314

The farr vawe i recognised ovor the vesting period Tre amoi-t

bect avalabie extirrate of tre number of urits expacred (o

2021
Nurnber of
awardJ

1640000
274741
151475

The total charge for the year was £3,1335,00

banility of £2 407,000 ncluded within crediors greater than one year (20210 £1,334 300

§

Interest receivable and similar income

mtt‘fﬁﬁt on rwr« ba‘aﬂrm

0 (2021 £1,234,000) and at the 30 June 2022 there was 2

interest payable and similar expenses

Ir v»srmt o banik horrg vmgg

Amaortsation o ssue £osts on bark barrowngs

FProBhoss ar Genvative ﬁnafir 1 ﬂ&nywenr

2022
£'000
32 192
2,597
(2 235)
33 554
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Foaxoz e ooy
a) Analysis of charge in year

{restated]
2022 2021
__£000 000

curr;nttaxk s s R R X ARAS TR 14 b s 174 T SRR SRR LD 5 2 st 17 S S AR R
UK corporation tax cnarge on profit/iloss) for tne year (297) 1.648
Adjustments in respect of pror per'ods 3,196 {2.866)
Fo'eum tax fur‘erﬂd 5 641 -
Deferred tax:

Originaten ard reversa. of timirg differerices 6,227 2.074
Adiustmerts in rescect of gror gerods (3,741) 13,998)
Efect of cha ) 5 268 11491
Tga cetferrag 15_1;“” ] Crvrmmem e e 7754 o MWWQJ67 '
Tax charge on profit/{loss) on ordinary activities - o 16,204 2,349

b} Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax ascessed for the year is higher (20210 fugher thar tne stanaard rate of corporation tax in the Uk of
19% (202° 19%). Tne differences are explained below:

restated)
2022 2021

o B T R P e v A T AT P TR R A e ot B r

R SRR AR P $e A T3,

Proﬁtl (loss) before tax

Froftitoss: bg forr tax mu. ‘Elr Dy stardard rate of

,04 4,
corporatinn tax n the LK of 153% (2020 19X 2,045 (4022

Ffecrs of

Experses not decuctple for tax purposes 11,723 16,075
Other effects (868) 1,022
Ircome not taxable for tax purposes (8,102) {9,351)
Ad ustments ir tespect of prior periods (545} (6.865)
Effects of change in tax rate 5,041 11,485
Total taxcharge forthe year S - I 7 \ 16,294 . 8,345

E£'000 £'000
47,604 (21,170}

<) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the mair rate of UK corparauon tax from 19% to
25%, effective 1 April 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sneet have neen measured at 25% (2021 25%)
whch represents the future corporatior tax rate that was enactad at the balance sheet date.

Maoie 26 deta ls the pror period adiustmeants
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Software Goodwill
(restated)

Group ] £000 ) __fFgoo
Cost S Y0 S SR oS Ao PP
A1 July 2021 frestated) 964 726,602
LCauived trough bus.ness - 30,042
cerroinations (note 27)
Additians 2125 -
Cisoosals - {21,118}
Gd on vans Lﬂ‘f - - 7930
At30June2022 3089 743,456
Accumulated amortisation - . 7
AT July 2021 restiated) 107 159,902
Dirposals - (2.462)

Loss an translation -

imparnent -

Charge fr*r e year 12
At 30 June 2022 11
Netbookvalee
At 30 June 2022 2,970
Al Z0 June 2021 (restated; ‘ ‘ 857

(192)
7913

540,981
566,700

1557
13,757
9182 576,759

Pevelopment Total

rights
£000 £000

0 S hngand TRl PvErtan,e SO SheEshes

10,216 737,782
4,058 34,100

1,640 3165
- {21.118)

- 7930
15314

1034 161043
- (2462)

- (192)

- 7913
‘2 3 3/’ 849

557,708

“he gan on transtaton of fareigs
mcome Amorosaton of goodwell s charged (o admirst ation

Details ¢f the subsid aries acguired durng the year ended 30

During the year the group disposed of 2 wind farms in Finland

amaorlisahon was recagrised 0 the current y
sale recoonized n

Immpairment of £79m has been recognise

Mo 25 detai’: tne pricr cenoe ad ustments.,

w

Casts.

June 2022 can

the profis and lese in reiat on 1o this transaction was 228
goodwll 2021 none;
security for liabities 2t year end (2021 none;

ry Fad ~o intangiole assets at 30 june 2022 (2021 norel

azaresult£25

car a~d £19 3 of goodw b was realisco

drrency denorrinaied goodwill is recogrized in other comprohensve

aund in nete 27

m of aocur-oulated goodwil

the zale Gainon

761 359 )

204 151
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

G 0 o s

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets construction {restated)
{restated)

Group £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost e Lot e ke RS RS S R4S AN SRS b <o < St $ A oA s 02T S AR A P A

AL Ly 2027 fiecietnd) 8531 317457 16954357 27288 43,277 2,092,000

Adfrlitimnn 029 L5385 75047 60462 238,006 374480

A0 18 SrOUgh BUS e 1308 - 51344 - 57663 110,315

- - 368 - 3,294 3662

- 68 1,065 30926 132.07G} -

Crsocsaie {135} - (75,950 ~ - {76,086}
At30June2022 10533 349,071 1745911 118,686 310170 2,504,371
Acéumulateddepreciatién “ o S - 7 ‘ S

4,410 90,059 414,556 1,290 - 510,318

Charge for tie year 183 17130 81141 3,348 - 101.802

Dispasals - - 1182) (227) - {403

FX movement - - {776) - - (776)

At 30 June 2622 4,593 107,189 4§4,742 4,417 - 610,941

et bk an . . P RS e e

At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430

;;ﬁ;giaéﬁrgam 4121 227408 1,280,878 25998 43277 1_581,682~

Included within targible assets are capitzlised finance costs directly attributable 1o oringing the ascet ‘nto
use The rer carying amount of assets held unaer finance leases imcluded 1n plany, machinery, fixtures and
frngs s £55,785 000 (2021 £51,534,0006 ) Included in network assets is a provisien of £1,022 COO for
obsolete equipment and developrment,

The Companry had no tangible azsets at 20 June 2022 (2021 none)

Note 26 detalls the grior period adjustments.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

i

Unlisted
investments Total
Group R ) gw'oook N E’Oop’

Cost and net book value

AUT Jduly 2024 11,000 11,600
Addifions 129452 125452
Dispossls (1G5,000) (lOS 000
At30June2022 35,452 35452
!\ 30 dune 2 ..-JZ! o m o T "il“d()g T 11 OOO 7
Subsidiary

undertakings Totat
Company ) £000 £'000
Cost ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e e aabap ey | rembeae rontonsas
AL 3G dune 2621 2311678 2311678
Addinons 228300 228,300

”)\ apgsa\ 5
At 30 June 2022
Accumuiated lmpawments

2539978

2,539.978

At A0 June 2027 195,312 195,312
Seversal of impairmerts (195.312) (195,312

im Jd‘fmem s - -

At 30 i‘lune 2022 - -

Net book vatue

At 30 June 2022 2,539,978 2,539,978

/\l kL] JL.PP 20 A1 2 116 366 2,116,366

Details of related underiakings arc shown ir note 29

Unbizied irvestrnents corrpnse toe Group's nolding of the memibers captal of Tende LLP, & lenaimg

business, and s shareholding in Bracken Traging ored Fern co-founded Terico LL2 0 Octe

ober 2012 witn

the mtention of conducing a ,)r0uorf an of its future trade throug- the partnership Adaitens and dsposals

of unlisted nvestrrenis relate ©
requirements and to uthise surpius funds Fernnas s s
iz to time Ferms irvestment in Bracken Trading Limited at 30 June 202

)

The directors do rot co-sider Tendo LLP or Bracken

Tradirg Lmted,

evestrrents and divestrments in Tenda LUF an ung with Fera's ¢ash
Tail shargnoiding in Brackef Trading Liruied from
ras ENIE 30 June 2021 E£nitl
cing Lmited & s bs diary undertakings of Fern
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Cash includes cash in hand and depaosits repayable on demand

Restricted cash represents cash ‘or which the Grouo goes rot have rmediate a1d direct access or for
which requlatory or legal requirernents restrict the use of the cash
Group

2022 2021
; e e S EBO0 s 20
s Ln”mmrand A b R B RS e Stk i b 1T 7 AR 135,823 - 11714*
Rostr cted cash S 60,592~ ‘ 55,33?
Cash at bank and in hand - . 7 o 172478

Restricted cashs comprses of £726 000 hela in Escrow and £99,86€ 000 o

Bi-anaua! qistr-botion windows.

-

T1e Cormgany had a cash balance of £6,422,C00 as at 30 June 2022, none of which was resricted (2026

none;

200

Group
2022 2021
£000 E£'000
Fuel, spare parts and consumables 26,023 18,592

Property developrners Wil? 156,918 73923

184,479 o4

Ircluced in the fuel spare parts and consurables stock value 15 a provision of £390,0600 for urusable fuel
sock (2021 £458,000) including in property development WIP s a provision of £928,C00 for warranty and
site specific provis'cns.

Trere Fas been no impairment recogrised dunng the year on siock (2021 nonel. No inveniary has been

pledged as security for liabiliues (2021 none)

The Corpany haa no stocks at 3C June 2022 (2021 nonel
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 i
15 oo

Group Company 1

(restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021

£'000 £000 o £000 _E000

Amounts falting due after one year
Loans and atvarces to customers 137,662 16,128 - -
Amounts falling due within one year

Loans and advances o custamers 223,239 269,384 - - :
rade dekbitors 42,056 16,121 392 8 !
Amoucts cwed by related parnes (nole 243 - 3,950 32,950 12,751
Othor dedtors 20,199 24,572 3,843 5008
Coyrporation tax - 6603 2,527

Donvaine frzne al irstruroer:s (note 73 54,409 6,469 - - gi

|

Fresayrmerits ard accrucd ingome 145,602 154,375 176 32616 i
623,161 498,002 39,888 50,383

and advances o custemers are stated net of provisions of [12,874,000 {2021 £28,19%,00C1 f

repaytrants and acorued ncome are stated net of provisions of £7,739,000 (2021 £13,741.000) ‘

NG interest s charged on amounts owed by group urndertakngs, as e outstanoing Galances are unsecured ;

and repayable or demand (2021 nong]

- s ‘ . i

MNote 26 detals the pricr period adjustments H

;

3

H

i

{

i

f
H
H
]
]
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Group Company

{restated)
2022 2021 2022
) £'000 E OOO £000

bar\P toans andg averdrafts inote 15} 87,732 47,386 -
Trade creditors 58,004 23,330 76

CabvEr Taxaton ana soosal seCurmy 8,161 - -
Onbeer creditors 24,362 55906 -
Amounts due to related parties {(qote 24; - - -

14) 2,428 3147 -
Derivatve Narc ai nstroments inote 22 - 143 -

AL

Finance lesses inate

256 152 202.055 449

rLate and deferred rcoms 75 465 72,087 373

2021
£000

CTRLBRAE A SR TARANNCECRONSEY AEIGUR NG HEENOAUR Bes BRI et HH R R b s ks £ TND 408 e R s Bt s L e 3 SR BRI B 8 ERES AT B R b OB b

16
20,203

2 ?O‘:
22 924

Group
2022

Amounts falhng due between one and fwe years £'000

s A b R TR Ak ek b AT G R YRR B o 3 s ncua ¢ el ER BELD DRI bR KR ARSI AR B R R B 4 R oo

Em:r"k ~Ers and overdrafis (note lt,,l 383,070
Firance leasos inote 163 5,899
Denvatve anancial rstruments inere 21) -

5364

{othor creditors:

394 333 S

2021
£000

247297
6,125
5415

258837

Group
2022

Amounts fallmg due after more than five years £'000

2021
£°000

I R0Ee S FERS e P P AT BB T 04D 255 e MBAN BB R, vk s st o 3 PTEBLT 802507 Bt e S SRR

Bark Loans and overdrafts (ncte 16 573,416
Firarce leases (note 16) 24,676

Derwatve Arancial rstrumearnis ing

593,092
Tedat creditors faling due after more than one year 992,425

BT WY

577235
24,495
42,772

"644502
903,339

The Company has o creditors due ir greater thian Gne year
AmoJarts owed to ralated parues are unsecurad, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Note 26 detalls the pnor penod adjustmerts,
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A6 v oo re
2022 2021
o E'QOPW‘ . £'000
m(,mr ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ o SRR KBt oo i T R 87,732 B 47386
Due between one and hee yesrs 383,070 247297
Due in mere than five years ~ o 573,416 i 577235

1,044,218 871918

The Compary had no banx loans at 30 June 2022,

E

The bank lcans are secared agamnst assets of ine Group wth each oan &s held by the subsaiary shown be ow

Interest rate 2022
. Fo00

6 month SONIA plus 160% " s20438 ¢
Cedar Epergy and Irfrastrariure mied LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% - -

3 month EURIBOR plus
120%, Fixed rate 1.70%

Ehos Frergy 2

30,946 34995

Chos Crergy 3 12% + 6 maonth EURIBOR 56,079 -
Boomararg bnargy Lirnred & month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348 265,344

6.49% (swap rate of 4.59% +

Carlington 2cint Sotar Farm Pty Lemitea 19% margind

114,026 -

Molton Renewable Liergy UK am ted 6 month SONIA plus 2 35% 85,718 103,439
Dstacca Wk Hodoo BTY Lt 17% + BRSY 31,614 -
Elwia Hornes Linnited % + SONIA £ 25% non 12,306 -

utilisation fee

Fixed rate 2.5% 43 -
1,044,218 871918

SONIA repiaced LIBOR as the effective interban«< lending raie system fror 1 January 2022 The rste change
resulted ir ro commerc:al impact to the busiress

Finance leases

The future minimum finance lease payrments are as fouows,

2022
£'000

aran v sremrvae 4 tas ol el s CeRebOL R e ARy D Pk R

Paymernte due

Not later than ore year 2.428 3166
Later tnar one year and not lator tran five years 5,899 5,196
Later trian v yoars 76,461 72,013

“otal gross payrmerits 84,788 81,375
(51,785) (47.609)
Carrying amount of the liability 33,003 33766

4

Less fnance charges

The finarce wases primiarly relate 1o a lessea bulding and Realtthcare equipment There are 1o contingent

a
secured agamst the leased asse's

The Company had no finance leaszes at 30 June 2022
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k¥ ARt

Decommissioning {restated) (restated)

provision Deferred tax Total

ALl duly 2021 20439 20,833 41372
Increasa recognized in proft and (053 21 11495 11,516
IrCrease recognised through other Comprehersye noome - 18,202 18,202
Irmgairment 16 - 16
Ircresse recognised in fxed assets 23,656 - 23656
Recogrised on subsidiary acg.alsiions - {3.568) {3.568)
Ad ustmient in respect of pnot years - (5,465) {5,465}
Urwirding of discourt 249 - 249
Ad ustment relating te change in accourtirg eshmate (3,373} - {3.273)
Gar or rransiation 15 - 15
At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597 82,620

Fe decommissicning orovision 15 he.s 1o cover fature okugations fo return ia~d on whicr the

Op&(ot&@ﬁa‘ wind, bioreass and sclar farms, 1o theis onginal

utiised for in excess of 25 years
The Company hiad no provisions at 30 Jun

Note 26 detaills the prior pencd agjusimerts

18 0 uoowsra ool Lo

Tre Group and Corrpany have the following srare capital:

re are

conditicorn The arounts are not expected tc be

Group 2022 2021

Allolted called -up and futty paid ) E£0Q0 o EOOO
FSZ‘I“,_ 96,755,258;

1516622 0112071 1496755258 161,662 143,676

Orihnary snares f £0.10 eacn

Company 2022 2021

Allotted, called-up and fully paid o - £'000 £000
51F 113004 o (]

1616622011 12021 1,496,755,258] 161,662 149,676

Crdinary shares of £0 10 each

During the year the Group issued 119,866,754 (2022 1.501,199,278 ) ordinary shares of £0.10 each for an

aggregate nominal value of £11,287.C0
consideration of £203,750,000 (2021 £2,2

G (2021 £150,120,000) Of the shares iszued derg the year, total

16,695,000) was paid for the shares, giving rise 1o a premium of
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

£191,763,000 2021 £173,.18.000;. Dunny the year the Group purchasea rit (2021 4444 020
crdnary shares of £0.10 each wih an aggregate rorminal valus of Ene (2021 £444 000)

ota

of £nil (2021, £6,844,000) was paic for the shares, giv ng rse 1o a prerium of £01, (2025 ££,79G,
The Grouo nas adopted predecessor accourting principas a3 it was formed a3 part of a group

n, therefore the share capital and share premium acoouet are treated as if they hag

apital ansing both before and after the restructure are reporresd ag

ol s owr

Leansigeration
()

dlways
movements

During tre yesr the Company 1ssued 119,866,754 (2021 1,501,.99,278) ordinary shares of £0 10 each for an
! Y 10y Y

aggregate nominai vaue of

ey

=11, QQ/OLO 2 Al £150120,000). Of the shares issuad curnng the vear total

consderation of £2035, /50,000 (2021 £2,312,695.000; was paid for the srares, giving nse 1o a premium of

£191.764

D00 {2021 £2,172,275.000) During tre year the Group purcnased i (2021 4,444 020)

of its cwn

ordirary shares of £G 10 each with an aggregate romina! value of Enil (2021 £444,000), Tota! corsiderat on

of Eni (2021 £6,844 000 was paic for the stargs, givng rse o a prermum of £0 (2022 £6 2399.000)
Cina-y srares. These are no resiricuons on tne dstiibaton of avicends and the

Cash flow hedge reserve
The cashk flow hedge reserve 5 uzed 1o recora transact ons ansing frorm the Growo's ©
nedging arrangements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve anses from the dfference belween the fair vawue of the shares issues and the hoox

values of the supsicianes acquired

he movernent in noni-conrollng nterests was as follows

Group
Note 2022
Group ) £000
AU T July 2021 3,721
Sale of subsdiary Lridertanos and acgquisizion 57
of non-controtling inte
lotal comprenensve loss attributatle i {6,622}
r

e contoiling Ater

AC3Z0 June 2022 (2 902)

2021
£'000

w o ¢ w enugemenanana

§.570

(1.842)

(4,007

3721
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20 70 e

A3 at 30 Sune 2027 there were no contirigencies a

s the CGroup or Company

O
B
o]
i
in

-t

BL oo e g

Carrying ar-ounts of financial

Group Company

{restated)
2022 2021 2022 20721
Group £'000 £000 £000 £000

Seangrre, 2sanEs o

B B .- Lt e Mol n e NERNE % e b OBEER YRR SR e o aa b

Carrying amount of financiat assets

Debt instruments measured at amaostizsed oost 423,150 430,556 4,235 17767

ured at far value through profit and .ose - £,469 - -

54,409 - LT

Measyres at amortised cost 1,126,163 956,384 76 15

Meacureq at far valuo through ether comprebensive ncome - 42772 - -

1.5 the paor cerod ad;ustrrents.




i
Lo+l

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022
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Derivative financial instruments
The Group's finar-cial nisk management seeks 1o minmise the exposure to market rsk, credit risk, tquidity

and cash flow risk, ard energy rmarket ris

a) Market risk

Energy market risk

The energy sector s experiencng significant turbulerce and there is a risk that forecast levels of \ncore a
not achieved due © changes in wholesaie energy prices, off-take conracts o government subsid es.
Changes in Government podcy, or reguiator intervention may resuit in reduced ircome streams witrin the
group due o adsitionat levies,

Currency risk
The Group presents its conse dated finanaial
other curranc.es, principasy Lure and Aust-aian dollar Conseguenty tna Group is exposed to ‘oreigr

statarments in ster. g and conducts busingss in g numhber of

exchange nsk dus to exchange rate mover-ents, whic~ affect the Group's transactional experses and me

translaticn of earring ang rot

>ts of its nori-sleriing operations
Transactional exposures

Transact onal exposLres anse from adrmiristrat ve and other expense N curenc es Gther thar the Group's

presentaional currency (Sterling) Tre Croup @niters e to forward faregn exchanga cantracts and ‘oreign
excrange swaps 1 mit gate the excharge rate risk for certain foreign curency payables and recaipts The
forward currency contracts and swaps are measured at farr vaiue, whchis determined using valuahon
technigues that utiize observaole Inputs Tne key inpats used in valsing Tne aenvauves are the forward
excnange rates for GBEALD and GBP ELR On 30 Jun 2 tre far vaiee of the fore gn currency
contracts was an assct of Fnil {2021, £6 463.000) and a Iar‘mry of Enil (2021 £ 143,000}

Translational exposures
Baance sheot translational exposures anse on consoldator on the refransiation of the balence sheet of
ner-stedirg oporations into sterlieg, tre Group's presentationa: currercy Toe level of exposare i3 reviewed
by managerert and the potental foreign exchangs movement is within an acceptatie leve: of nsk and
therefore, typically, tne Groug's policy to 1ot to activey hedae these exgosure

Interest rate risk

The Group has expos.are to fluctuators -0 interest rates or 1s borrowirgs Where the Group enters nto
borrowirg arrangements with fioating rate interest, a swap arrangamenrt s entered N 16 fix a portion of
the interest ir order o mit gate against an Noresse innmerest rates The portion of inwrest to ce fixed s

assessed on g case c) czse basis Managemeant can elaect whether to hedge account for these
arrangements on an indvidual trarsacuon basis and have lected o aouly hedge accaunt ng for irterest

rafe swaos The swaos are Dased on a Mou
On 30 June 2022 the cufstanding nterest rate swaps Fave a snatunty 1 £xcess oF five years and the fair
=] by
£54 409 000 (2021 lap Uty of ££2,629,000!

tof tre loan faclty ana ~atdre on the samie date,

u

Price risk

]

ne Group s g short- to medium term lender to the residential oroperty market. To the extent that there s
detenorat'on r the tevel of molse prices that affects the proverties that ine Group's loans are secured
against, there 1z a nsk that the Groun may not recoLp its full exposure. Trsis mitigated Dy the short-term

Aature of the \cans and the conservative level of loan 1o valde that the Group is prepared to end at.

i
h
h
i
i
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b) Credit risk
Customer credit risk is muigated through tne Group's credit control polcies, which are in place to ensure
that our customers have an aporognate credit nistory and are monitered on an ongeing basis
c} Liquidity risk

Licuiaty nsk are mmanages oy ensuring that sufhcient cash g avalable to func cortinuing and future operations
Liquidity risk arses an bank foans in ptace across the Groun and s managed through careful mowonng of
covenants and sensible levels of debt Borrowing s on a long-enm basis, whiereas our revenue is received
througroul the year, as well s interest and r-ﬁj mptons on aur short-term loan occok. Tasn low risk i<

managed throwgh orgoing cash flow forecastirg to enzure recaipts are sufficient 1o meet liablities az they

fall due
22
At the year ond tne Group nad capital commitments as folows.
2022
Group £'000
Coriractes ‘or but rot provided inthese finang al slatements 347,254
Urdrawn facilities onioars "o borrowers 173,600
At 30 June the Grous ~ad tota: future mnimum ease paymeants under non-cancelasie operatng leases
as foliows
2022 2021
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buildings
E'OOO E000 £'000 E000
Payments aue
Ner later than ore year 8,707 661 8,031 749
Later than one year and not later than fve 31,627 726 20,369 1.686
years
Later thar dve years 95,664 - 118,932 9
135,998 1,387 157332 2.444

Tne Group had no other off-balance sheet arrangements (2021 none).

Under sections 394A and 479A of the Companies Act 2006, the parert company Fern Trading Lim:ted has
guaranteed all cutsranding liabilties on those companies taking the exemption @ which the subsid:ares list
on pages 79 to 90 were subject to at the 3¢ June 2522 until they are satsheq in full These labilities wota
E915m Suchk guarantees are enforceable against Fern Trading Uimited by any parson @ whom ary such
uabrlity 's due.

Tre Company hac no captal or other cormmitments at 30 June 2022,
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Cn 11 duy 2022, Fern Trading Deveopment Lrmited ("F7 0L, a subsidiary of the Grous, successfuly sold
Darington #ont Holdeo Pty Limuteg to Ociopus Austrata Master Trust, A small profit of £850,060 was made
of the sale

Cnthe 1st of Zecember 2022, the Sroap acquired rights 10 a £25m creditveucner a~d the right to Lse
mobile licenses from Three UK, via a2 Strateqic Conneclivity Agreement, thus mizking the first stes wowards

becoming an rmobile virtual networ< aperator

Under FRS5 102 23 1A disclosures need not te given of ransacticns enteres into between two or More
memoers of a Group, provided that ary subs diary which 15 & parly o tre ransacton is wholly owned by
s.ch 3 memper

Loy

During the year, ‘ees of £77,9?2 OO0 2021 £61.154.000) were charzed to the Group by Octopus
\mws\mef ts Limited, & re:ated party due o its significant infiuence over the entity Cciopus Investmens
Lim-~*ed was recharged legat and orofessoral fees totaling £10,155 (2020 £16 G600} by the Groun. At the

d, an arrount of £5500 (2021 £219.0030; was cutstanding which s nclided in trade creditors

yeur e

The Group 1s entitled 1o a profit snare as g rezult of e ryvestrent 1 Tende LLP a relsted party due 1o key
r'namagement parsonnelin commion In 2022 a share of profit equa: to £5,249 050 (2021 £443,000) has

peen recogrised by the Graun. Al the year end, the Groug has an nterest rithe rnemter's capial of
£35.452,000 {2721, £11.000,000; and accrued 'ncome due of £5,276.000 (2021 £472,0C0)

The Group enaages 1 lending activ ties which inciude bala s provided to related warties Regarding
entities wi- key rranagemert perf;cr“nel i common, 1oans (f £62.490,000 2022 £173,224.000), accrued

ncome of £19,789, Cuf‘ (2021 £26.203,000] and deferred imcorne of [nil (2021: £201 0C0) wers cutstarding
ar year end Durning the year interest income of £7160.007 (2021: [17.587.000) and fees of £394 000 (2021
£536000) were recogn'sed 17 relation to these loans

During the yea- the Croup acaumred 9 reserve power Compan.cs from companies mMaragea by Oclopus
frvestrnents Limied, a related party Se6 note 27 a) fo- detaile of thae comoanies acqured
Az ab 30 June 2022 £nd (2021 £2.950,2/5) was owed o the Company by Bracken Trading irnited, a related
party by key managerment gersonnel in commorn,

Cither than the transactions disciosea above, the Company's other related party transact o3 weare with 11s
wholly owned sussigiary rmembers of the Group.

I the opin‘cn of tne directors, there s no uitimate controling party Or parent company
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a) Group structuring review

We nave conducied a review of pr.or years’ accounung treatmeart of infercompany restructunng

review managerent dentitied u

i this

rortised goodwil Baances in relator G these transactiors We nave

aarn.
acustad the previous years o reflect t-e implementation of aro-lisation backdateo to when the relevar:

transactiors accurred

The accurmuatles im
was [Em 2020 nt

£5 Zre) the movement of
numoers. A sumreary of e mpact of the correctior 1s provided celow

nact for tne gooowill amortisation in the profit and (oss for 2021
£2 7m has been restated tiroughout the 2021 comoaratve

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)

Group o E 000 E 000 £000
Zinodwi 583 988 (5,3 ) 578,653
Retarned carrings 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)

Groqp N ) ) o . E'OOO ] £000 £'000
Goodwal 602 7ll {8.049) 594 667
Retarned eamrirgs (123,920} 8,049 (115871

As oart of the reviey
rest-ucidre
discovered in the review The accumulated impac
was L2 5

tfor goodwit am

v of the intergroup restruciuring mentioned above, management identited one of the
5 had peen incorrecily accountad for in a sub sectior 2F tne group. No further errors were
crtisation in the profit and 1oss for 2022
- 2020 £1 3mi, the rovement of £1.2m has been restated threughout the 2021 comparatve

numoers This imapact o the 2020 opening retained earmings was offset by £2 1m writter back agaiest Had

debt expenses

Management have corrected the identifiec error with the following mpact

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)
Group e __£'000 £°000 ____Eo00
Gocemll T 583,988 29187 554805
Retainad earmings 41,185 899 42,084
Debtors 842,549 (2.724) 839,825
Creditors amourts ‘aling due wittin one year (232.813) 496 (232,317]
Fixed assets 1.346,655 20,512 1,377,167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group o . £000 £°000 N r.'ggo
éomogz‘[[,mm\ S —— - 6{)2,?11 M(27J§\63} —— 57?72§% e
Retaned earnings {123,920) {321) (124.241)
Debtors 600,726 (2.724) 538.002
Craditors amourts falung due witin cne yoear {207.318) 496 {206,822)
Fixed assets 1,551,170 30,512 1581682
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b} Deferred tax adjustment

We have conducted a review of all corscldauon entries at suisecnons of the group We have idenufisc an

error relating to 2019 when deferred tax adiusiments were entered as a consolidation entry znd had

supsequently Nnot heen revarsed We have checxed the tax per subsidiaty account arnd nave ensured trat the

at
relevant balances are correct The error was posted at @ consclidated leve!l only and has now been corre

Year ended
30 June 2020
(as stated)

Group £'000

BN g bR [ B LERERERE RER L Smnamanan oo B Y IV N P S

Retaned oarrngs 41,185
1232.813)

Crecrors amounts falling due within one yoesr

nla

effoct intg June 2021, tne restated balarces are as ‘o

Year ended
30 June 2021
(as stated)

Group £'000

Retzed oo ngs 1123.520)

Creaitors armnoungs fGlhing due within one year (207.218)

QWS

Adjustment

£'000 R

cted

Year ended
30 June 2020
(restated)

£'000

(4.764)
4764

Adjustment

{4,764)
4,764

£000

26421
[228.049)

Year ended
30 June 2021
(restated])

£'000

(128.684)

(202,554

in propanng the tax computar ons for 20272, the Groug's tax advsors have not ced an averlooied

ALSUMPLOr N previous years tax consolidation calcuiations Within the areviously unrecognised deferred tax

assats held with in tre groun some were ava lable o & consoudated level 1o offset the Group's deferred ax

Habity. Onanindivideal company basis the ceferred @ax in previous years had bee

rcorreclly recogn sed. A

part of these defered assets are in relation 1o cash flow hedges Pe.d within the group wrich are accounted

for withir sther comprehens ve income T

for 2021 was £157 (2620, £15 3mi the maverens of 30Ck has peen restated througnout the 2021

comparatve Niimbers

A summary of the rnpact of e correction s provided be'ow.

Year ended
30 June 2020
{as stated)

Group £'000
Retsined sarmings 41,185
Cash flow recge reserve 53857

Defered tax provaons

(36484}

e gooumulatec impact for the tax charge in the

Adjustment

£'000 L

{15,299}
{3.875)
15,174

roft and loss

Year ended
30 June 2020
{restated)

£'000
25,886
56,962
(17.310)
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Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
Group ' o ] £'000 o £’DBO £°000
o ;WC" nw;”j,lwq mee e s et e mrans reamsm e e e TR 3(1/3920) (1 693; ﬁ(ﬁgmi)
Cash fiow hedge ererve 17,098 (2119} 14,975
feferrea tax provisions (38,145} 17,212 {20.933]
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)
Group £'000 E'GDO _E'000
Retared oarn T Caties g3ezor 27356
Gocdwill 584988 (34,517} 549471
Debtors 842 549 (2,724} 839,825
Fixed assels 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
Deferred ar prowvsons (36,484} 19,174 (17.310)
Cagh flew hedge reserve 63837 (5,875] 58,962
Creditars amourss fail ng que wthis ore year (232,813} 5,259 (227,554)
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated} (restated)
Group ‘ £’000 - £'000 E 000
Goodwill 602,711 (36,011 566,700
Debtors 600,726 (2,724} 598,002
Ficed assets 1,551,17G 30,512 1,581682
Deferred tax, provisions (38,145 17212 {20,933)
Cash flow herdge reserve 17.098 {2,119} 14,979
Credtors amour:s fallng cuc witnin cre year (207.318) 5259 {202,059) )
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By
o

by - .

a) Reserve Power acquisition
On 2 Juty 2021 the Group acquired 9 reserve power sites througn tae parcnase of 100% of tre share capral
for consideration of £18

The fohowing tables summanse the consideration pa'c oy the Groun, the fair value of the assets acquired,

and the labiltes assumed at the acquia tion date

ans:deratlon ’000

etalls of tne far vaiue of e net assels :

o
W
oy

O
o

=
4
[al
o
3
o
)
o
’)

dw Il ansirg are as ollows.

Book value Adjustments Fair value
£000 £000 £000

[P PRI L I et ae R0 easmes T Teamigm ca U 4 wan BT L T SNSRI S

Fixed assets 80.78% (28.553)

Trace and other recevanles 2594 - 254
Prepaymernts G35 - 635
Casn and cast, equivalers 7858 - 7858

Trade and oher craditors (2,2066) - 2,
oans (58 16 - (58,216}
Net assets acqunred 29,553 {28,553) 7 -

Total consuderauon -

Goodwil, resulting from tne busness combination was nid.

The conscadated statormert of comorehensive income icor the yvear includes £45,805, 000 revenue ard &

profit after tax of £686,000 1 respect of tnis acqu sitic
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b} Doveryard Limited acquisition
On 22 Ocrober 2021, the Group acquired Doveryard Limited and its subeid ary trrough the purchase of
130% of the share capial for consideration of E.13,414,00U

The folowing tables samrrarse the consideration pad oy the Groug, the ‘e r vawe of assets acquired, ard
liatslities assumed at the arauisition date.

Con5|deratlon E'OOO

e P RO LA AR R bkt B bk aufe § a b0 PPHESEARCRM RN ARt thad Bawhfeurmnnate T co T 3TN TURARS XRE B0 e ARARER cbbacta e 0 ST ITHE U ORR R Rt pawas 4100

Cashi 12 "’77
Dr \,ulf ah.\habﬂcocv 1.0%7

Totai consideration ) 13 414”‘

Detals of the far vaiue of the net assets acgured and goodw il ansing are as folows

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

} £000 EODO o £'000

Fuea assets 563 - 569

Trade and othor recevables 52 - 52

Prepayments and accrued irCome 193 - 193
Trddu df"d otl”er Cre iors (467} - (467)
Net assets acquured 347 - 347

Goodw I 13067
Total consuieratlon 13 414

Goodwil resultrg fom e busingss combinat.on was £13.067000 ana has an estimated usetut lfe of 25
years, reflectirg tne ifespan of the assets acquired.

nit of reverue and a loss

™

Tne consclidatea staterment

of comprehansive income for the year incluges
before tax of £123.000 0 respect of this acguistion,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

c) Dulacca acquisition
On 27 August 2021, the Group acquires Dulacca WF Holdeo PTY Ltd and its three subsichanes through the
purchiase of 10G% of the share capital for © de ation of £115,680.000

The folowing tables summarnse the considaration pald by the Group. the farr value of the assets acguired,
and the labil ties H

Fe acgusition date A Vst of the entties acquired included in note 2%

AUD'0GO Exchange Rate E'CO0

Cash . 217,557 18904 115,085
Lrrectly attroutanle costs 1126 18904 595

Total consideration - . T 218,683 115,680

he shnme aas » D A AL CTTIT I e i T st

Details of the farr va.ue of the nst assers acqurred and intangib e ansing are as folows

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair

values value values value
o ‘ - AUD 000 AUD 000 AUD’GOO E‘OOO £'000 '000

Fixed assats 1C7,63d - 107 637 3(3,937 - 56,9 57
Trade and ciher recovables 10,131 - 10,13 5357 - 5357
102,072 - 103,072 54,525 - 54,525
(10 852) - (10.952) - (5 7ﬁ3J

Net assets acqulred 209 884 - 209,884 - 111 026
Irreng ;|bt 8799 4, 6‘54

Total consideration 218,683 o 115,680

Insangoles resulterg frorm the aszet purchase was £4 654,600 and ras 57 esimated useful life of 30 ycars,
refiectirg the Pespas of tha assets acqurea,

The contolidated statermert of comprenarsve income for the year includes £n.l of revenue and a loss affer
tax of £237.000 in respect of this acguisition

e
LT
s ,zmmmgfﬁ
ettt by St Tt
e il s AT ¥
Pt S b Ll e H 2 (rga,
S it e o
PR S
ST T
i

S e
Sl

!
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 21 January 2021, the Group acquired Zestec Assat Mangement Limied a proect sources for reofton
szlar through the purchase of 100% of the share capial for consideratinn of £4,765.000

Tre folicwing tanles summarise the consideratior paid by the Group, tne fair vaiue of assets acquired, and
Lanilities assurmed at the acquisition date,

Consnderatlon ) o £ 000

ra{ - - revertat < se s SO 5 A AN SR NRA S ks S o T OB TSP 3672

Deferred corsideration -

Cirectly attributatie costs 1093

Total consideration S -  ages

Detals of the falr value of tre net assets acqured ard goodwil ansing are as foilows

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

e o . 000 €000 £000

Trade and other cre 1o 1574) - (574)

Trade and cther recevanles 400 - 400

Cash anc casa eguivalents 1.019 - 1.019

Ot'm- lo\ rs {46) - (46]
Net assets acqu;red ‘ I 955 S . 955
Coodwil o - - o I . “3’,’816” .
-r.;;talco,;;.l.i:;;t.on e e e e o e e oo e e e e i e e e 4’765

Goodw Il resuing from the basimess comoiration was £3.810.000 and has an estmated useful e of 10
years, reflecting the estimated Lfespan of the assets acquired

Thne consoldated statemen! of comprehensive income for the year inciudes £128.000 of revenue and a wss
before tax of £494 000 in respect of this acouisitor
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 §
¢) Elivia Homes acquisition
On 23 May 2022, the Group acquired Euwvia Holdings vimted and s subsid ares, through the purchase of ]
100% of the share cagital for consideranon of 231,684,000 ‘
The fellowing tables summarise the conzideration paid by the Greup, tre fair value of assets acgured, and 3
‘ ; i
nabitities assurned at the acguisiion date A list of the ertutes acgured are included in ncte 29, %
Total consideration 31 684 ;
Detalls of the fair va.ue of the net azsers acyuired and goodw il arizirg are as follows: f
Book Adjustments Fair 3
values value i
£'000 £000 £000 ;
Fresd assets 41y : 418 '
Intargible asses 11,767 - 11,767 !
Stack 59,939 - 59,93
Trade and other centors, 2.609 - 2,609 ;
Cash grel Cash egusier s 11603 - 11,603 i
i
Accruals and deferred income (420) - {420 i
Provisions {530} - (930) |
Ceforad rax 65,000 11.400) 4,600 %
rade and o : (69.453) - (69.453) |
Net assets acquwed 31,533 (1 400) 30,133 i
Goodwild 1551 .
Total consideration 31,684 :

Coodwil. resulling from the business cormbination was £1,552 080 and Fas an estmateg useful ife of 10 !
vears, reflecting the lifespar of the assets acguired. l

The consolidated staterment of comarehensive ncorme for the year includes reven.e of £25.034000 ana a
.
I

r,,
—
wn
-
I 0
[}

48]

<

>

respect of ts acquisiten i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
2B e T e e e
Cur reporieg resuts are grepared ir accerdance with United Kingaoom Accourting Standards, including

Friancial Recorting Siandard 102, as detaed in e Sinancial Staternents startng on page 35 of the Annusl

Report i meassunng car performance, the financia. measures that we use inciude thosa that have been
dervea from our regorted rezults in order 1o elmirats faciors that distort year-on-year compariscns Tnese

1J

are Considereg r-CAAR fnanc al measures.

Net debt
YWe orovide net debt in addition to cash anag gross debt as & way of assessing o overail cash position and it
i3 computed as follows

2022 2621
. Mote  E000  £000

Bank loars anid overcrats 16 1,044,218 871,918
5,364

\/\hmr 'uar":

Grossuem e e e e el Il 104653&m s 871 913 .
4] 1t ram dﬁd ml ;rd 11 (256415)

Net debt 793,167 699,440

4
s
=
i3

2%
i

s FPE S

PN en
Lt
I

iz
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 :

EBITDA
armings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortsaton (E3ITOA) ¢ caiculated by ad,usting profit after
Eamings bet nterest, tax, dep tion artisat CERITOA s caiculatec by ad ustin oft afte

tax for interes:, tax, depreciation and amaortisabon, in aadivon to income and expeanses tha: do not relate 1o
the day to day operaticns of tee Group. We provide ESITDA iIn aadition to profit after tax a5 1t allows us to

asscss Gar parforrmandce sithout the effects of firancing and cacial expenditures

The following fakble details the adjusinents mace o the reported results:

(restatec) j
2022 2021 :

Note £000 E'GO0

RN TosBean CtMEvmenas Reroaa TtCtiimaae® ttrmema Sormmrene TSR w SPPARTenas  Shma 0 Fead B Chetmo WIUUTSw. S URIgh & TSPAlewsesstPRima P H

for the financial yea 31310 (51012} ;

Profit/(loss) for the fi
Adal

[l

Amortisation of Intargible assets 37849 37,704
7513 -
Cegrecislion of iangible assets ks 101802 84,697

© 5 33554 36.067 ;

@

parent of Iangioie asselln

Interest payaole and smilar expens

SRCOPNONAL Larns 1,105 .
Tax 7 16,294 8,345 1
Loeg :
ncarne from other fixed agsat Investrments, (5,249 (449} |
Share of cperaung proit o, ol vent e - {1.755) i

Proft an disposal of subad ares {29.532) {28,568} :

Interest recernabia and similar ncome £ {130) (597) Z
EBITDA - k 194,916 1047136
Note 26 details the prior period ad ustments :
{
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

29

Cetals of the subsidiary undertaxings are as follows

Adalirda Solar S7v 1 Limated™

DA
[T

Agr sol e
Al NMetwarks Limiteg™
Alpoints Fbre Lirmited®”

Alchericarrocn Energy Lirrted?®”

Aununice Land Zormpany Limited?

Avenue Souac Farm Limired™

Banoury Fower Lirmized™

Be.ghicn Energy U mite’
Berreun Wind Farmr, Ltd™
Bellhiouse Energy Lirnited”
Birch Esrate Salar Lim ted”™
Blaby Sclar Farm Lirited”
BNRG IOW Limited™
Boiam Energy Limited™
Boormerang Erergy Limite
Boreas Energy Limited”
Brattor Fiemmyg Limited™

Breck Solar Limited™

Bryn Yr Odyn Solar Developments Holdings

Lirnited™

Eryn Yr Odyn Sclar Developments Limited”

Bury Power Limited”

Cadoxton Reserve Power Limited™

Caiclas Energy Limited™

Cark Limited®

Country of
i rporation

France

LUK
UK

[JK
o UK
UK
UK
France
France
UK
UK
LK
UK
LK
UK
LK
K
LUK
UK
K
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK

Ireland

Class of

shares

Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordmary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

,,,,,,, Holding activity .

o 100% ﬁvgld{ng‘c‘ompany
100% Energy genéeration
1G0% Energy generation
1G0% Holding comparny
ooy e
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Fnergy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
1G0% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Dorrmant company
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
1G60% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
1600% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
1007% Holding company
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

Name incorporation shares Holding activity
Caswell Solar Farm Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation

Catrkin Energy Liniteg?™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy gereration
Causigay Lirited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cedar Energy and Infrastruciure Limited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
d;‘;C;ﬂr:‘ngijliagziwlegr&;dh France Crdinary 160% Energy genaration
CEPE de Marsarre SARLY France Qrdnary 100% Energy generation
CEPE Haut cha Saule” France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CEPE de i@ Fache Guatra Rivierss SARLT France Ordinary 160% Energy generation
CEPE oy pays e St Sc re SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CERS S AL France Crdiniary 100% Halding comparty
Chaison Mesdow Energy Cimiteg” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Chrusber Selar Farnm Held.ngs Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Hotding company
Cruttering Solar Twao Lirnrted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cilgwyn Energy Limites UK Ordirary 100% Dormant company
Ciann Farrn Lirmited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Claramend Sofar SFV L Lirrited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLP Developments wimted” UK Qrdinary 100G% Dormant company
CLP Ervircyas Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Eegfvv\f‘ezn of OBM
CLP Services Lirmied’ UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
CLPE 1951 Umited’ UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
CLFE 18599 Lrrited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Halding cormpany
CLPE Heldirgs Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
CLPE Projects 2 Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
CLPE Progects 2 Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
CLPE Projects 3 mited™ UK Grdinary 100% Holding company
CIPE ROC - L Lirmnted” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE ROC - 2 Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE ROC - 3 Umited”™ UK Ordinary i00% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name
CLPE RGC = 3A Limited™ S
C_PERGCC — 4 Limited™
CLPE ROC =~ 4A Lirnied”
Clyrme Power Limieg™
Colsterworin Erergy | mitea™
Cennon Brdge Energy Lmitea™
Cotesbach Erergy Lirrited”

our W nd Farm (Scotland) Lirntedt™

C

Crapne’| Farm Lirr teg”

Crayfern Hormes (South Coast) Limizea?
Crayferr Limitwed'!

Crayferr Sunley 1Shinfold Limzed**

Craymarsh bmites”™

Cressing Sclar Farm Lirmited™
Culvery Sower Lirmted”
Cyron Power Lirrtag'

Dafen Reserve Power Linited™
Dairy House Solar Lirrited’”

Despdae Farm Solar Lirrited™

D

Doveryard Limitgd™

Drapers Farm Lirmjted™

Duiacca Tnergy Project Co PTY Lig™®
Dulacca Energy Project finCo PTY Ltgh?
Dulaces tnergy Project Hioldeo Co PTY Ligh?
Dutaces WF Hodeo PTY Ltd™

Dyffrys Srodyn Limited”

Eakrng Limnirec™

Elecso. Camargle SARL?

Flecso! France 7 SARL?

Flecso France 11 SARL®

Elacse! France 15 SARL®

Flecsol France 19 SARL?

Country of Class of Principat
incorporation shares ~~  Holding activity =~ ...
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
K Grdinary 10U% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy genaration
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary  100% Ef;ﬁr?éo;:?etgi
Uk Crdinaty 100% (d:c?r;?;{s:zt;ju?!s;gs
K Ordinary  100% gj‘[;f; g‘z:‘;cczfs
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generatiocn
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Alstralia Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Australia Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Australia Crdinary 100% Holding cormpany
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
France Ordinary Q0% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generaticon
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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-

Elec

sol Franc
Elecsol Frarce 24 SARL®
Elacsal France 25 SAR.

SaRLt

3]

Elecsol France 2

v

e

Elecsol France 41 sARLT
Erecsol Haut Var SARL®

-~ 4

Euvos Energy 2 Frarnce SAS

Elas Energy Holdirgs 2 Liruted”

Eles Enaergy Moldmgs 5 Lirmted”

Elos Energy Holdings
Elios Rerewahle Erergy Liruted™

Cuvia Developrmen: Finance Limited!

Flvia Hoddings mced

- ; . 1
Elivia Homes {Cendral) Linted!

Elwvig Hornes (Dornant 2 Lt

Elvia Homes (Grangs Road; Linmited

Elivia Homes {Netiey) Limitea™
Elvia Hames (Soutnern) Limited -
Elivia Homes (Suro-ton) Lirated??
Elvia Homes Lirrized®?

Elnia North Lirneied??
i1

Elvia Oxord Limited

Evvig South Limuted*!

Country of

incorporation

B ]

France
France
Frarice
France
france
France
France
UK
France
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

1JK

UK

UK

UK

Class of
share:

B ey LA

Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdmary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary

Cramary

Ordinary
Beferred
Preferance

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
106%
10G%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal

T AT LU

Energy gemerétion
Etiergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding compariy
Holding compary
Holding company
Construction of

domestc buildings

Financial services
holding companies

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
building projects

Construction cf
dormestic puildings

Construction of
dormestic buildings

Development of
buttding projects

Development of
building projects

Construction of
domestic buildings
Buying and selling of
owh real estate

Construction of
domestic buidings
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Name

L R T P R 2 7S I R I T ot

Elivia Southorn wmited'

Eil.zombe Limited™

cnergy Power Rescurces Limited”

EPR Ely Limited”

EFR Eye Lirmted”

EPR Carford Limited™

EFR Renewanie Energy L miteg”

EPf Scotand Lirnited®

EFE Theltforg Limied™

Eucalypius energy Howgings _imited™
Eucalypius crergy Limites™

Feltwall Erergy Limtea™

Fern Energy Cowr Hold'ngs Limitea™
Fern Energy Heldings Limited™

Ferm £nergy Limnited”™

Fern Energy Wind Holdings Limired™
Ferri F.bre Lirm-ted”™

Fern Healthcare Holdings Lrited”
Fern Infrastructure _imited”™

Fern Renewabie Energy Limjed™
Fern Rooftop Soar {A) L mited™

Fern Rooftop Sowar 'BED)”

Fern Rooftop Solar (Zestec! Limited™
fern Tracung Development Limited™
rerr Traging aroup Limited

Fern UK Power Developments Lemited”
Fiorophos Limited™

Four Burrows Limited ™

Fraisthorpe Wina Farm Lirmited™

Country of

incorporation shares

Class of

Holding

Principal
activity

T 8 pepemanenet

UK

LK

UK

LK
UK
UK
K
UK
UK
LK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Grdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
UK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

100%

100%

100%

100%
1C60%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1007%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Construction of
domestic buildings
Buying and selling of
own real estate

Energy generation

Energy project
develcpment and
rmanagemerit
services

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Helding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Halding compary
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Suppty of fertiliser
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of

rporation _ shares .....Hotdi 9.2 g A
Crdinary Dormant company
Cigare: Fibre Lid™ UK Crdinary 100% ;gsuncentgfrk
Cegznst Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% ;Eﬁ;?&ork
Glenchamber Wind Energy Umied™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Grange Wind Farm Lnced™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generalion
Guardbride 5P z 0.0! Poland Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Harbourne Power Lirrited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hayraxer (Mount Ml g™ LK Ordinary 106% Energy generation
Hay naker (Natewood) Foldings Umitea” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Hayrmaker (MNatewood) 1a™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Haymaker (Qaxdands) -oidings Lirnted” UK Ordinary 1007% Holding company
Haymaker (Gaklanast Lid™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Helrn Power 2 Lirnited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Hern FPower Limuted™ UK Crdinary 1002 Holding compary
Highar Knapp Farm Jrnitea™ LK Crdinary 10C% Erergy generation
A End Farm Lirn tea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Holamnoar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Full Reserve Power Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hursit 3Py 2 Lrvted” UK Ordinary 10607 Energy generation
Imimingnarn Sower Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
irwell Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Jameson Road Energy Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Jurassic Fibre Hodings Limited™ UK Crdinary 0% Holding comparny
Jurassic Fibre Limited UK Ordinary 90% Egguﬁg\frk
Kiim Power Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generationr
Largan Fower Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Lerham Sclar Limites™ UK Ordingry 100% Erergy generation
Little 7 Solar Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Littieton Solar Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LLY Corrmurications Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% ;\rbordedr::etz‘\;;]ork
Leddor Power Limited” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name oo oo < iNCOrporation  shares ~ Holding activity e
Lm%ew Lwrﬁtec‘" UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Lurnizance Solar Lmited™” UK Ordinary 1002% Energy generaton
M2z Solations dmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
Manstor Thorre Limied” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generat.on
March Encrgy Limited” UK Crdinary L0027 Energy genaration
Marden Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Marley Thaich Solar Limsted” LUK Crdinary 100% Energy genaration
Meadows Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Meitolrn Solar Liritea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy genergtion
Meton L Energy rmitec” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Meiton LG Holdirg Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton LG ROC Lirned” UK Ordinary  100% égsr:;frfj”g
Meton Renewanle Energy (nclangs) Umitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
Meiton Renewahle Erergy Newco Liriten™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Holding company
Metten Renewsble Erergy UK Limitec UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
MELHIL Farmm Solar Limited™ UK Qrdinary 160% Energy generation
Mingay Farm Hotding Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
MSP Decoy L1ic™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
MSF Sirete Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MSP Tregassow Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MTS Haichlands Solar Lid™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Neverr Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MNew Row Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MNewlanas Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ninris Farm Limited”” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Nortin Perratt Fruit Farrn Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Nortnwich Power L mited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Notos Energy Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Ogmaore Fower Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Oldrali Energy Recavery Holdings Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
One Ashford Health<are Limited UK Ordinary B9% E;C;\iltliwfar]rsfser\Jices
One Hatfield Hosptal Lroited UK Ordinary Q0% Provision of

healthcare services
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One Hea\ta;ﬂrc .—’ar:ferf L|m.tﬂd
Oria Wedgehdl Solar Holdings Limited™
Crta Wedgenil So:ar Lirited™
Padfreys Barton Limited”
Parciau Holdings Limuten™
Parciaw Limited”

Fark Broadband Limntec™

Pegrmat Solar 2 _rd™

Pitchifors (Condover Airhalg & St
Lo el

Fitts Farm Limeitea™

Fortres Solar Lirmiied”

Pyms Lare Scar Lid”

Ciueens Park Hoad Fnergy Limmited”
rd Care noneq”™
Rangefora Crertioy Lmited”
Rangefors Cirencestar Limited”
Rargeford Dorking Limited™
Rangetora Holdings Lirited”

Rangefora Pickerrg Limited™

Rangeford RAP Limitea™

Rangefore Retrement Lying Howdings Lo

Rargefora Stapieford Lirmied”
Reaches Farm Crrated™”
Redlake Power Liruted”
Ryston Estate Limmitee™

4

Sammat SARL

Selby Power _mred”

SFP Fiore Lirmited®

Country of
lncorporatlo

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
France

UK

UK

Class of
sha res

Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Orginary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordirary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordmary

Ordinary

T

Principal

Holdmg actMty

SR

85%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
10C%

1C0%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

[
o
O
5@

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

NGk pa e ¢

Hotding cémpany
riolding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy aeneration

Energy generation
Haolding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Care services for a
retirement village

Retirement village
development

Retirement vilage
development

Retirement village
development

olding cormpany

Retirerment viliage
devetopment

Retirernent village
development

Holding cempany

Retirement village
development

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
N et et e s NCOMPOKAtion  shares Holding actiVity o
Singrug Holdings Limitedg™ UK Ordinary 100% Heolding company
Singrug birmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Six Hilis Lane (Ragdale) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Skelbrocke Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Slaugbteraats Limited” UK Orrdinary 1UU% Energy generation
Sneterton Renewable Power ~uels Limied” UK Ordinary 100% fsjeipty of biomass
snetterton Renewabie Power doldings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Hoiding company
Snetteron Renowabie Power Lmitea™ LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarf LFCR SARL® France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfl SPO1 SARL® France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi 5P02 5ARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sclarfl SFO4 SARL? France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Selarf SPCS SARL France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Solarh SPSE SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarh SP1G SARL® France Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Southcombe Farm Limited™ LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
St Asapr 2ower Jimied” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Parkhouse Solar Limited™ LUK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Rudge Sotar Ltd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Shioton: Belinger Solar Uimited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stellar Power Limired™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Stonayhill EE:ergy Lirmitad? UK Ordinary 100% Dorrmant company
Sulis Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Summersion Erergy Limited®” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sunley Crayfern Lavant LLPY UK NA 50% NA
Swaisn Fibre Contracting Limites® UK Grdinary 100% EL@;&?&OM
Swish Fibre Limited? UK Ordinary 80% Heolding company
Swiish Fibre Netwiorks Lid? UK Ordinary 100% ;gﬁuﬁfgfw
Swish Flore Services Limited? UK Crdinary 80% Egsuﬁg\ffk
Swish Flcre Yorkstre® UK Ordinary ~ 100% oM nemwork

producton

Swisn Trading Limiteg™ UK Crdinary 80% Holding company
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g PR BB i 11 e T

Sotar 10 U.m:teﬂ"
TGO Solar 107 Limited™

TG Soiar 68 Limmited™

TGO Solar 83 Limited™

The Fern Power Corrpany Larited”
The Holles Sclar Farm Limited™
Thoresby Estate {3ucby] Limitea”™
Titingnarn fower Linited”
Todhils Erergy Lmited™
Tredower Farm Limitedd™

Turves Solar Lirrited™

UKSE 15 Solsr Limited™

rited Mines Erergy Lirited”

VCSE Lid™

Vowonia Souar Lirmited ™

Viners Erergy | imaited

Vonf Lirritea™
P

Voligfrance Ol SARLY

voltafrance 05 SARL®
Volafrance 13 SARL?

Voafrarce SARLY

a

YVorboss Lirnited

Vorboss US Inc?

Wadswaok Creen Limtea™

Wadsw ck Green Froperty Servic

Warnngton Power [inuted™”
Waterloc Solar Park Holdings dirnite
Waterlco Soiar Park Limitea™

Week Farm 2 Limited”

Westwood Power Lrmited™

Westwood Solar Lim.ed”

B e L 14

< Uimited”

o
£

LLTpTeee

Country of

incorporation

EREiTERaTe -

UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK

UK

France
France
France
France

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Class of

Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdmnary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Grdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Principat

100%
100%
100%
100%
1002%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Energy generation

Energy generation
Enrergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy géneration
Energy generatior
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Fnergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation

Fitire network
production

Energy generation
Holding cecmpany

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Retirement village
operator

Service charge
administrator

Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation

W g o
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
NAME e . COMPOMAtiON. shates  Holding activity
“V;‘etherc:ieﬂ Energy Limited” LUK Crdinary 100% Fnergy generation
Whiarf Power Lirnited™ K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wiiddon rarm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whinney Hil Energy Limited™ UK Ordmary 100% Energy generation
Wincele Solar Heldings | imated”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Welverhamotsn Power [d™ LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Craft wind Farm Limitea!™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
WS5E Bradforg Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
WSE Hulavingion Hold ngs Lirmitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
WSE Hullavingion Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Paric Wall Lmied™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyde Crove Limiteg”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Zestec Asset Managemert Lirnted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Cuckoo Internet Ltd 31/08/2022
Vitnf Digital Lireited 13/07/2022
456 Lmited 2271172022
Subsidiar es exermpt from audir by virtue of s480A of the Companies Act 200€

TSubsidiaries exernpt from audit by wirtae of 84734 of the Comparnes Act 2006
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dlssolved or sold durmg the  year and up unttl slgmng ) . e e Date )
Bem : Holomgs ; lm\tﬁd o SRS S8 SR e Y8 AR RS 4B ¢6/07/2021
Ridge Wind Acguisiion uimited 20/07/2021
Farn Erergy RidgeWird Acquisitions Lmited 14/09/2021
Ferr Energy RidgeWind Hoidings Lim ted 21/09/2021
Ferr Enercy Partnerships Holdinge Lirmuea 21/09/2021
Frasihorpe (Holding) Lirmited 25/03/2022
v Oldhall Erergy Recovery Limited 13/09/2022
Commz21 Lid 15/09/2022
Bariingtor Point Holdeo Pty Limited 08/0772022
Darlington Point Solar Farm Py Lemited 08/07/2022
Darlingion Point Subhodas Pty Lirted 08/07/2022
Nordic Power Deveiopment Lirmited 23412/2021
Voyrirkangas Wind Fanm Oy 23/12/2021
Salnamas Wird Farm Oy 23/12/2021

The regicterad office of sll cornpanies lisled ancve 15 at th Fioor, 33 dolborn, London, Erguand, BCIN 28T
except for those set aut below:

L ul Grzybowsks 2/28, 0C-131 Warsaw, Poland

i~

Pnsent Mascns LLE Capital Sguare, 58 Maorrisan Srreet, Edirburgh, Scotand, EF3 8BF

3 1 Woest Reger Street, Glasgow, G2 LAP

4. 27 rue Alohonse de Neuwville, 75017 Fans, France

5 etk Foor 2 Grand Canad Squars, Dabim 2, 02 A342 ireland

& The Carnage House, Station Waorks, Stauon Road, Caverdon, Warwickshire, Lnited Kingdom, CVES 8PE

7 Zore ndusriels ce Courtine 115 Rue Du Mourelst 84000 Avignon, France

8. 13 Sa.isbury Pla acn, England, WI1H 1F]
2 Tre Corporaton [rust Comparty, Corporation Trust Centar, 1209 Crange Stress, Wiminguon 15801

United States

10 4th Fioor Salire Court, 20 Castle Terrace, Ezinburgh, Scotland, EHL 2EN
11 Apolo House, Mercury Park Wycoemoe Lare, Wooburn Green, High Wycombe, England, HP10 OAF

12 Level 33,101 Collins Sreet, Melpourne, Viciora, 3000, Australia

13, Beaufort Court, Bgy Farm Lane. ¥ngs Lang.ey, bertfordshre, WO4 GLR
14 7-8 Stratford Flace, London, England, W1C 1AY

The arectors believe that the carrying value of the Nvestrments is supporied by ther underlynig net assets
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Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

n Trading Uimited 15 an uniisted companry Zvery monh, our Board of Sirectars agrees a price at which it
will Ge welling to ssue new shares The share price s unauaited

The Agures he.ow ircluge the share price of the nrev cus parent (now Fern Trading Grouo Limited) as well
as this entity,

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19

. /f

16 M

15 Y T

’ e
s
13 WW
v
12 WMW
11
10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2027 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Performarce s calcuiated oased on the sale price for Fern's shares at 2 June each year " he share orice is
not stject to augit by —rnst & Young LLP

Annual discrete performance

Financial Year D:screte share prlce performance

S TN R RAET

June 2021-22

Jme 202“ 21 4.87%
Ju , 2019 29 e o 033%
Juﬁ@ 2018-15 6.23%
June 2016 ‘17 - - - "5.54%‘
Jme 2055 “67 7 3.83%
Ju 204 et e vt o+ e e e e 398% - ,
June 2G23-14 | | 3.72%
Jur@ 200 2-1 7 - 3.97%
Juﬂe 2011-12 7 | 1.02%

Source Octopus Irvestrents Limied, 2 June 2022,
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Directors and advisers

DHrectors i Ragistered office
PS Latham
KI Wiiey

PG Barlow
T Arthur @opoirted 1 July 2022) Do lndependent auditors

&th Fiocr, 33 Folborr,
London, Enganc ECIN 24T

Ernst & Yourig LL?
Redford House,
Ooionus Corrpany Secreiar al Services Limited ! 15 Bedford Street,
Beifast B72 70T

Cormprany ssoralary

Lompany numiber
12601676

Forward-tooking statements

Ths Annuat Reoost contains certam forward-lcoking staterments refated 1 the Company's “Uture busress
and financal perfformarce ard fulure avents or developrents. “hese staternents are based on the currens
krowledoe and expectancns of rr'—aﬁagevnerwt and are cubject I2 assLmprons, risks and uncertainties, sorme
of which are reated 1o facrors that are beyond the cortrol of the Compsny Accordrgly, no asslrarce can
De giver tnat any particular expeclal onowill pe met and forwarg-.ocking siatements regard ng past trencs o

Al cortinue 1 tne future. ~ast

tvitiez should not be taker as a represertation that such trends or activis

ac
performence carnct be reled on as a quide o fuiure performacce. Nothing 1~ th s Arnual Recort shiculs ke

construed as a roht forecast




